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TKe WUXVWeeV SUeVeQW WKeLU aQQXaO UeSRUW WRJeWKeU ZLWK WKe ILQaQcLaO VWaWePeQWV aQd aXdLWRU¶V UeSRUW RI WKe 
charitable company for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the purposes 
of both a WUXVWeeV¶ UeSRUW, aQd a dLUecWRUV¶ UeSRUW XQdeU cRPSaQ\ OaZ. 
 
The trust operates a non-selective free school for pupils aged 4 to 11 serving a catchment area in Barnet and 
neighbouring local authorities. It has a pupil capacity of 210. The school has been building up since opening in 
2013 and is now a full school with a roll of 209 in the October 2020 school census, reflecting children in classes 
from Reception to Year 6. 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 
 
Constitution 
 
Alma Primary is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum 
and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the school. 
 
The trustees of Alma Primary are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law 
and the Governors of the school, operated by the Trust. For the remainder of this report the terms Governors, 
Directors and Trustees are used interchangeably. 
 
The charitable company is known as Alma Primary. Prior to that, it was known as the New Jewish Primary School 
Finchley. 
 
Details of the trustees who served throughout the period, except as noted, are included in the Reference and 
Administrative Details on page 1. 
 
Alma Primary Trust was incorporated on 21st February 2012. Its memorandum and articles were changed on 
20th December 2012, and again in July 2013, in accordance with the guidelines laid down by the Department 
for Education, and its funding agreement was signed establishing it as a school in April 2013. The company was 
dormant in the period from incorporation to 1 August 2012. 
 
Members¶ Liabilit\ 
 
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute such amount as may be required (not 
e[ceedLQJ �10) WR WKe cKaULWabOe cRPSaQ\¶V aVVeWV LI LW VKRXOd be ZRXQd XS ZKLOe Ke RU VKe is a member or within 
RQe \eaU aIWeU Ke RU VKe ceaVeV WR be a PePbeU, IRU Sa\PeQW RI AOPa PULPaU\¶V debWV aQd OLabLOLWLeV beIRUe Ke 
or she ceases to be a member, and of the costs, charges and expenses of winding up, and for the adjustment 
of the rights of the contributories among themselves. 
 
TrXstees¶ Indemnities  
 
Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law 
would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, default or breach of trust or breach of duty of which 
they may be guilty in relation to the Academy Trust. The cost of this insurance in the year was included in the 
RPA scheme operated by the EFSA for free schools and academies, see note 11. 
 
Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees  
 
The Members of the Trust comprises of the signatories to the Memorandum, the Chair of the Governors, and 
any other additional individuals or organisations as approved by the Members, provided that such appointment 
or removal is in the interests of the charitable company. 
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The number of Governors shall be not less than three but (unless otherwise determined by ordinary resolution) 
shall not be subject to any maximum. The Governing Body shall consist of: 
 

x up to eight governors appointed by the members of the Trust,  
x a minimum of two Parent Governors elected by tKe SaUeQWV RI WKe VcKRRO¶V SXSLOV,  
x the Headteacher,  
x a governor elected by staff employed by the school, 
x co-opted Governors, appointed by ordinary resolution by Alma Primary, who are persons willing to act 

as a Trustee of the Trust. 

Member-appointed and co-opted governors are recruited to fill identified needs determined by the Governing 
Body. Prospective Governors are interviewed by a subcommittee of Governors to determine their ability to fulfil 
the identified skills and needs and capacity to undertake the role of trustee at the requisite level. They are then 
appointed by a vote of the governors or members. 
 
Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees 
 
All new governors shall receive a Governor Induction Pack, with information on: 
 

a) Governors handbook, detailing the role of the Alma Primary Governing Body, expectations of Alma 
Primary Governors and GB processes as well as the role of a Governor, setting out responsibilities 
under Charity and Company Law. 

b) The School Handbook, including vision and values. 
c) Articles of Association. 
d) A summary of our governance structure. 
e) Governors Code of Conduct. 
f) The School Development Plan. 
g) The School Evaluation Report. 
h) A pack of Governing Body and committee Terms of Reference. 
i) Contact details for all other Governors. 
j) Staffing structure at the school and contact details for key people. 
k) Details of how to access online Governor training and the face to face Governor training courses 

provided by Barnet Council. 
l) A glossary of acronyms and Hebrew terms used. 
m) Minutes of past meetings. 
n) The most recent Ofsted and Pikuach (Jewish community Section 48 inspection) reports. 
o) Recent school and Governing Body self-evaluations. 

In addition, an induction programme is undertaken, led by the Chair of Governors and Head, including a tour of 
school, and with the support of the chairs of any committees the Governors may serve on. 
 
All governors participate in regular training. We do this by: 
 

1. Subscribing to online training and advice resources. 
2. Running full group training sessions led by the Headteacher and by others, including experienced 

Chairs of Governors of other schools. 
3. Participating on an individual basis in training sessions organised by Barnet Council under its well 

regarded BPSI service. 
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All governors also undertake visits to the School and meet with staff on a regular basis to keep themselves 
informed and updated. 
 
Due to the COVID 19 pandemic, both in person Governor training and in person school visits have been curtailed 
since March 2019. 
 
Organisational Structure  
 
The Leadership and Management structure consists of two levels:  
 

1) the Governors, and  
2) Senior Leadership Team.  

 
The Governors are responsible for approving all Trust policies, adopting an annual plan and budget, 
monitoring the school use of funds, upholding the ethos of the school and holding the school leadership to 
account, as well as making major decisions about the direction of the school, capital expenditure and senior 
staff appointments.  
 
To facilitate more detailed scrutiny of relevant items in the school development plan, address relevant issues, 
develop policies, devise strategy and manage risks, two main committees have been established reporting to 
the Governing Body:  
 

1. Finance, Operations and People 
2. Children and Learning 

These committees are made up of governors, volunteers and school staff. They are empowered to make 
decisions on behalf of the trust only where specifically delegated to by the Governing Body.   
 
The current membership of School Leadership Team comprises: 

x the Head Teacher,  
x two Assistant Heads,  
x an Inclusion leader, 
x a Jewish learning and SMSC leader, and  
x the School Business Manager (Chief Financial Officer).  

These leaders control the school at an executive level, implementing the policies laid down by the Governors 
and reporting back to them. As a group, the School Leadership Team are responsible for the authorisation of 
spending within agreed delegated spending limits, according to a budget adopted by the Governing Body. The 
School Leadership team are also responsible for the appointment of staff, though appointment boards may 
contain a Governor(s). 
 
The Head Teacher is the Accounting Officer for the Trust. 
  
Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel 
 
Alma Primary runs a robust Performance Management process, used for all staff in the school including key 
management personnel. Targets for the performance management of each individual are drawn from the School 
Development Plan and include data related targets relevant to the school¶V ke\ objecWiYeV. 
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Key Management Personnel comprise the trustees and the senior management team. Trustees are not 
remunerated in their capacity as trustees. The remuneration of the senior management team is determined as 
part of the performance management process and in line ZiWh naWional e[SecWaWionV. The HeadWeacheU¶V 
Performance Management is led by the Chair of Governors and a committee and the performance management 
process of other staff is subject to scrutiny and oversight by the Governing Body Pay Committee.  
 
Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations 
 
There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations of Alma 
Primary. 
 
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 
 
Objects and Aims 
 
Alma Primary is a one-form entry Primary School which, at full capacity, has 210 pupils organised in 7 classes.  
Our object is to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without 
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing 
a school offering a broad and balanced curriculum. 
 
Our aim is to create a successful school with a unique ethos, reviewed and updated in 2019. It has three key 
pillars outlined below: 
 

x A Commitment to Meaningful Learning and Excellence for All;  
x Inclusivity and diversity; 
x Inclusivity Rooted in Jewish values; and 
x A Nurturing Community. 

A Commitment to Meaningful Learning and Excellence for All 
 
We support and challenge our children to make maximum progress, whatever their starting point. Alongside 
excellent teaching and learning in Maths, English and Science, our broadly-based curriculum enables children 
to develop skills for 21st century life including creativity, communication and collaboration, as well as high 
quality Jewish Studies and Hebrew as a modern foreign language. We instil in our children a lifelong love of 
learning and enquiry to help them continue to achieve throughout their lives. 
 
Inclusivity Rooted in Jewish values 
 
We welcome children from across the Jewish community and of other faiths and communities. We welcome 
children with special educational needs, and those from all identities and backgrounds. Children learn from 
each other and about the beliefs and practices of others, to develop a strong appreciation and respect for 
Judaism and for other religions and cultures. Our children develop universal, spiritual and ethical values 
underpinned by Jewish traditions, so they grow up understanding the world and are equipped to take their 
place in it as global citizens. 
 
A Nurturing Community 
 
Our children and families feel valued and secure as members of the Alma community. Our small size means 
we know and care for each child individually, nurturing them to overcome any challenges they may face and 
achieve their full potential. We create a fun, caring environment which encourages friendship, confidence and 
wellbeing. 
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Objectives, Strategies and Activities 
 
Learning at Alma Primary 
 
Learning at Alma Primary is focused on children developing their understanding, expanding their knowledge 
and acquiring twenty-first century learning skills to enable them to thrive in our dynamic society. Our curriculum 
carefully blends key skill areas such as maths, English, technology, modern Hebrew and PE, with a wider 
knowledge base of Jewish studies, science, history, geography and arts. We monitor progress through careful, 
on-going assessment, giving each child both the challenge and the support that they need in order to maximise 
their learning. Our children learn about a variety of religions, often through encounters with people who are 
involved in their own faith communities, because of our deep belief that children should grow up understanding 
and appreciating different religious traditions. 
 
CeQWUaO WR AOPa¶V WeacKLQJ SKLORVRSK\ LV WKe LPSRUWaQce RI JLYLQJ cKLOdUeQ WKe RSSRUWXQLW\ aQd eQcRXUaJePeQW 
to find their own, innovative ways of doing things and solving problems. We enable children to develop their 
thinking skills, leadership and creativity, to explore the world around them and to acquire a thirst for learning. 
Traditional Jewish learning places great emphasis on the ability to think critically and to question, a skill we 
nurture in children during their time at Alma Primary. 
 
In order to make the most of their time at school, we teach our children how to work together in teams, to learn 
from each other, to deal with anxiety and to perform at their best. We place developing skills in speaking and 
writing at the forefront of learning. From the beginning of their school journey, we give our children the 
opportunity for deeper, richer learning experiences, which include elements of Jewish tradition and texts as 
well as immersion in Ivrit (modern Hebrew). This involves giving each child their own learning-in-depth topic to 
follow as they go through the school. 
 
Strategy 
 
Alma Primary works to achieve six strategic objectives: 
 

1. Create and maintain a culture of academic excellence where each pupil is individually monitored to 
ensure they are valued, supported and challenged effectively in order to achieve their maximum 
potential, and ensure that teaching and learning remain innovative, utilising the best of current 
research and technology to improve learning experiences. 

2. Imbue each member of the school community with the knowledge, textual skills and motivation to 
engage in a meaningful, spiritual & cultural life within the Jewish community and beyond. 

3. Develop the emotional literacy, spirituality, imagination and well-being of each member of the learning 
community, enabling them to become confident and independent thinkers, critics, collaborators, 
communicators, creators and lifelong learners.   

4. Use available resources effectively and carefully, in order to provide outstanding learning opportunities 
within a safe, high quality environment, which supports all learners. 

5. Recruit, nurture and continuously develop a staff team who work collegiately and effectively to provide 
out-standing learning opportunities for all, along with a Governing Body which provides outstanding 
governance to facilitate this.  

6. Endorse and promote the ethos of the school, ensuring positive relationships with all stakeholders are 
maintained, opportunities for engagement and collaboration are promoted, and that the school remains 
relevant to children and families from across the Jewish community and beyond. 

The School Development Plan details how the school plans to meet these objectives on an annual basis. 
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Public Benefit 
 
TKe TUXVWeeV cRQILUP WKaW WKe\ KaYe UeIeUUed WR WKe JXLdaQce cRQWaLQed LQ WKe CKaULW\ CRPPLVVLRQ¶V JeQeUaO 
JXLdaQce RQ PXbOLc BeQeILW ZKeQ UeYLeZLQJ WKe cKaULW\¶V aLP aQd RbMecWLYeV aQd LQ Slanning future activities. In 
SaUWLcXOaU, WKe TUXVWeeV KaYe cRQVLdeUed KRZ WKe ScKRRO¶V SOaQQed acWLYLWLeV ZLOO cRQWULbXWe WR WKe aLPV aQd 
objectives they have set for Alma Primary and are for the public benefit. 
 
STRATEGIC REPORT 
 
Achievements and Performance  
 
The year 2019-2020 for Alma Primary, as for all primary schools, was divided into a period before the COVID 19 
pandemic lockdown began and the period afterwards, during which the school remained open but was unable 
to teach all pupils, in school, due to the need to meet Government safety guidelines. 
 
Governance Changes  
 
Pre-pandemic, governors implemented a revised structure and workplan of the Governing Body, which had 
been devised during the previous year. These were the bLJJeVW cKaQJeV WR AOPa PULPaU\¶V JRYeUQaQce VLQce 
the foundation of the school and included a reduction in the number of main Governing Body sub-committees 
from four to two, with the creation of task specific committees underneath each of those main sub-committees. 
The aim of the changes was to improve co-ordination and problem solving, reduce the administrative burden 
on Committee Chairs and widen the number of Governors and volunteers involved in specific issues.  
 
Governors also introduced a revised Alma¶V GRYeUQaQce \eaU SOaQQeU, VeWWLQJ RXW WKe Ne\ WKePeV WKe 
Governing Body will look at each meeting, in order to focus Governing Body time on in depth topics, deepening 
GRYeUQRUV¶ XQdeUVWaQdLQJ RI WKe VcKRRO. FLQaOO\, WKe GRYeUQLQJ BRd\ LQWURdXced WKe cRQceSW RI WKe µLLQN 
GRYeUQRU¶, aOORcaWLQJ LQdLYLdXaO GRYeUQRUV WR VSecLILc WRSLcV, WR deeSeQ XQdeUVWaQdLQJ, RYeUVLJKW aQd VXSSRUW 
for the school. 
 
Inspection 
 
Alma Primary was due an Ofsted Section 5 inspection in 2019-20, IROORZLQJ RQ IURP WKe VcKRRO¶V VXccessful 
Section 8 inspection which took place in May 2019, and a Section 48 Pikuach inspection of faith provision. As 
a result the school spent considerable time preparing, involving the School Leadership Team and Governors. 
Ultimately, all inspections were VXVSeQded dXe WR WKe COVID 19 SaQdePLc bXW AOPa¶V SUeSaUaWLRQ VKRXOd 
serve the school well for 2020-21, when the Inspections are likely to resume. 
 
MITA  
 
We were fortunate to have successfully won a bid to Norwood, a Communal Charity, in 2018 to provide training 
for school staff in Maximising the Impact of Teaching Assistants ± MITA. The MITA programme is a year-long 
training programme underpinned by extensive research and has been pioneered by the Institute of Education. 
The Alma leadership team working with a team from Norwood, started the programme in September 2019. This 
included regular meetings of a steering team of staff and governors, weekly training and reflection session for 
LSAs and whole staff team meetings. As a result of the pandemic, the MITA work was put on hold in March 2020 
and the Leadership Team are now working to complete the programme in Autumn 2020.  
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COVID 19 Pandemic  
 
Following the national direction of the Department for Education, Alma Primary stopped in-school teaching for 
the vast majority of its pupils in March 2020 as part of the national lockdown. During this period the school 
remained open for a small number of vulnerable children and the children of those designated as key workers, 
while providing at home, distance lessons, for the remainder of the school. Alma staff performed incredibly 
well, creating a home learning programme, while also supporting children in school and managing their own 
varied home circumstances during the lockdown.   
 
In response to changing Government guidance, Alma welcomed back three classes of children, 
Reception, Year 1 and Year 6, for in-school teaching, from June 2020, after having conducted a risk 
assessment and implemented extensive measures to make the school facilities as COVID safe as possible. 
Finally, in the last few weeks of the Summer term, pupils from the remaining years received a few days in-
school teaching as well. By the end of the Summer term, every class at Alma had some teaching days 
physically in school, with years Reception, 1 & 6 having two days every week. This was achieved despite the 
limited physical space at Alma, and complying with the Government guidance of a maximum number of 15 
children allowed in a class at one time.  
 
The Governors met virtually on a regular basis to provide support for the school through the numerous 
cKaOOeQJeV RI WKLV XQSUecedeQWed WLPe, UeYLeZLQJ aQd aSSURYLQJ WKe VcKRRO¶V ULVN aVVeVVPeQt at each stage of 
school re-opening, whilst trying to manage and mitigate a declining financial situation.  
 
First School Leavers  
 
2019-20 ZaV WKe OaVW \eaU LQ AOPa IRU WKe VcKRRO¶V IRXQdLQJ \eaU aQd WKe VWaII WeaP ZRUNed KaUd WR SUeSaUe 
these Year Six children for their transition to secondary school, despite the difficult circumstances created by 
WKe SaQdePLc. TKe µJUadXaWLRQ¶ RI AOPa¶V SLRQeeU cOaVV PaUNV a VWaJLQJ SRVW LQ AOPa¶V deYeORSPeQW aV a 
school, and as they start a range of secondary schools, we are immensely proud of their achievement, and the 
VcKRRO¶V SURJUeVV.  
 
Key Performance Indicators 
 
Despite the challenges faced during the year, the school has performed strongly during 2019-20, continuing to 
provide a high level of remote learning during the lockdown period, maintaining financial operations and ensuring 
high quality provision for wellbeing. The pandemic restrictions meant that none of the normal external 
performance indicators such as Year 1 Phonics tests, end of Key Stage 1 assessments, and Reception 
judgements regarding Good Levels of Development, were carried out. However we had a high level of 
engagement in remote learning activities in most classes.  
 
With regard to finances, the cessation of activities such as wraparound care and after school clubs, which would 
normally help the school to generate income, coupled with a decline in parental donations, resulted in a 
significant gap in expected income and an overall loss over the year. Careful management by the School 
Business Manager, Leadership Team and Governors helped to minimise this impact of the budget deficit.  
 
Over the year, income received for the provision of educational activities, after adjustments for capital income, 
was £1,397,406. Expenditure on charitable activities, excluding actuarial liability and depreciation, amounted to 
£1,475,392, which meant that the trust was forced to reduce reserves by £77,986. Whilst the trust was able to 
sustain this loss due to past prudent management, continued erosion of the reserves in this way has the potential 
to compromise educational activities in the future. 
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Going Concern 
 
After making appropriate enquiries, the board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it 
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the 
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies. 
 
FINANCIAL REVIEW 
 
Reserves Policy 
 
The purpose of the reserves policy is to eQVXUe WKe VWabLOLW\ RI WKe VcKRRO¶V RSeUaWLRQV aQd WR SURWecW LW LQ RUdeU 
to respond to changes in financial circumstances such as unexpected expenditure, emergencies or delays 
between spending and receipt of incoming resources. The policy is reviewed by the. Finance, Operations and 
People Committee on an annual basis or sooner if warranted by internal or external requirements and is 
approved by the full Governing Body. This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, 
the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves. Authorisation for use of the reserves 
will be made by the Governing Body in line with the objects of the school. 
 
At 31 August 2020 the total funds comprised:  
 
Unrestricted    £205,143 
Restricted: Fixed asset funds £7,193,247 
 Pension reserve £(207,000) 
 Other     £1,902 
  _______________ 

  £7,193,292 
  _______________ 

 
Investment Policy 
 
Under the Memorandum and Articles of Association, Alma Primary has the power to invest funds not immediately 
required for its own purposes, in any way the Governors see fit. The organisation has a positive cash balance to 
cover eventualities and unforeseen expenses. The banking facilities are reviewed on a regular basis. No funds 
were invested in 2019/2020. 
 
Principal Risks and Uncertainties  
 
Alma Primary, through its Governing Body and the constituted subcommittees, manages its risk using a Risk 
Register which has been incorporated into its School Evaluation Report, ensuring that risks are considered 
aORQJVLde eYaOXaWLRQ RI WKe VcKRRO¶V SUacWLce. AQ\ PaMRU ULVNV KLJKOLJKWed aW aQ\ VXb-committee are brought to 
the main Governing Body with proposed mitigating actions and they continue to be reported until the risk is 
adequately mitigated. 
 
The Governing Body accepts managed risk as an inevitable part of its operations but maintains an objective not 
to run unacceptable levels of risk in any area. The subjective nature of this process requires major risks to be 
resolved by the Governing Body collectively, whilst more minor risks are dealt with by senior executive officers. 
 
TKe SULQcLSaO ILQaQcLaO ULVNV aUe aQ\ VKRUWIaOOV LQ IXWXUe \eaUV¶ SXSLO QXPbeUV, VLJQLILcaQW VKRUWIaOOV LQ YROXQWaU\ 
donations from parents, reduction in central government funding, unbudgeted increase in teaching or support 
staff costs, or unbudgeted major capital repairs. It is the view of the Governing Body that the principal risks and 
uncertainties that Alma Primary faces are mitigated by the risk management process that Alma Primary has in 
place. 
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Amongst the range of additional risks considered, during 2019-20 the Governors identified the following as key 
risks: 
 

1. Failure to adequately protect children and/or adults which leads to harm. 
2. Failure to develop and improve learning in order to meet the schools aims. 
3. Organisational mismanagement or external actions or activities, which lead to significant disruption of 

operation, to legal action or to regulatory intervention. 
4. Failure to meet and maintain legal or financial responsibilities which results in maladministration. 

The Governors put in place strategies, including monitoring procedures, and training in order to manage the 
risks. 
 
FUNDRAISING  
 
The school has received donations from families to support the quality of learning in the school, including a 
donation from our first departing cohort of families. The school did not employ the services of professional 
fundraisers during the year. The trustees monitor all fundraising activity.  
 
PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS  
 
Our key strategic aims for the coming year are: 
 

1. Create and maintain a culture of academic excellence where each pupil is individually monitored to 
ensure they are valued, supported and challenged effectively in order to achieve their maximum 
potential, and ensure that teaching and learning remain innovative, utilising the best of current 
research and technology to improve learning experiences.  

2. Imbue each member of the school community with the knowledge, textual skills and motivation to 
engage in a meaningful, spiritual & cultural life within the Jewish community and beyond. 

3. Develop the emotional literacy, spirituality, imagination and well-being of each member of the learning 
community, enabling them to become confident and independent thinkers, critics, collaborators, 
communicators, creators and lifelong learners.   

4. Use available resources effectively and carefully, in order to provide outstanding learning opportunities 
within a safe, high quality environment, which supports all learners. 

5. Recruit, nurture and continuously develop a staff team who work collegiately and effectively to provide 
out-standing learning opportunities for all, along with a Governing Body which provides outstanding 
governance to facilitate this.  

6. Endorse and promote the ethos of the school, ensuring positive relationships with all stakeholders are 
maintained, opportunities for engagement and collaboration are promoted, and that the school remains 
relevant to children and families from across the Jewish community and beyond. 

The key challenges we aim to address in the coming year are: 
 

x Ensure consistent and clear communication with stakeholders during pandemic. 
x Ensure blended (in-school & remote) approach enables continuity of learning across the school. 
x Learning strategies enable teachers to support children in making progress to close learning gaps. 
x Ensure safeguarding culture is reflected in the curriculum. 
x PURPRWe IRcXV RQ µWKULYLQJ¶ LQ VcKRRO aQd be\RQd. 
x Ensure wellbeing of staff and wider community. 
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FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS  
 
Alma Primary does not hold any funds on behalf of other organisations. 
 
AUDITOR 
 
In so far as the trustees are aware: 
 
x WKeUe LV QR UeOeYaQW aXdLW LQIRUPaWLRQ RI ZKLcK WKe cKaULWabOe cRPSaQ\¶V aXdLWRU LV XQaZaUe 
 
x the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant 

audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information. 
 
The TUXVWeeV¶ UeSRUW, LQcRUSRUaWLQJ a VWUaWeJLc UeSRUW, ZaV aSSURYed b\ RUdeU RI WKe bRaUd RI WUXVWeeV, aV WKe 
cRPSaQ\ dLUecWRUV, aQd VLJQed RQ WKe bRaUd¶V beKaOI b\: 
 
 
 
 
«««««««««««« 
Ilan Jacobs 
Chair of Trustees 
 
Date: 
 
 

22 December 2020
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SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 
 
As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Alma Primary has an effective and 
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed to manage rather 
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not 
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.  
 
The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head Teacher as accounting officer, 
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management 
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between 
Alma Primary and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of 
Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control. 
 
GOVERNANCE 
 
TKe LQIRUPaWLRQ RQ JRYeUQaQce LQcOXded KeUe VXSSOePeQWV WKaW deVcULbed LQ WKe TUXVWeeV¶ ReSRUW aQd LQ WKe 
SWaWePeQW RI TUXVWeeV¶ ReVSRQVLbLOLWLeV. TKe board of trustees has formally met 7 times during the year.  
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows: 
 

Trustee Meetings 
attended 

Out of a 
possible 

Ilan Jacobs, Chair 7 7 
Deborah Brooks, Vice Chair 7 7 
Andrew Sutcliffe 5 7 
Natalie Grazin (leave of absence until Dec 2019) 6 6 
Edward Lewin  7 7 
David Grunwald  5 7 
David Steadman 6 7 
Samantha Rosehill (Staff Elected Governor) 6 7 
Katie Abrams (maternity leave until Dec 2019) 5 6 
Jean Linksy 6 7 
Sophie Fenton (Parent Elected Governor) (resigned ± 2 July 2020)   5 6 
Rina Wolfson (Parent Elected Governor) (resigned 4th June 2020) 4 5 
Emma Davies  6 7 
James Burns (from 17 Dec 2019) 5 6 
Marc Shoffren, (Principal and Accounting Officer)  7 7 

 
Governance Changes 
 
The leadership of the Governing Body remained unchanged throughout 2019-20, with Ilan Jacobs remaining 
as Chair and Deborah Brooks as Vice Chair.  
 
DXULQJ WKe \eaU, bRWK AOPa¶V SaUeQW eOecWed JRYeUQRUV, SRSKLe FeQWRQ aQd RLQa WROIVRQ UeVLJQed aQd 
elections will be held among the parent body in the Autumn Term 2020. The Governing Body was also joined 
by James Burns, who had served for a period as a volunteer on the Finance Committee, boosting the 
representation of non-Alma parents. James brings a wealth of experience in business management to the 
Alma Governing Body and significant community involvement, having been a trustee of Masorti Judaism, a 
previous chair of Kol Nefesh Masorti Synagogue and has worked with the Community Security Trust (CST) in 
full, part-time and voluntary roles over a thirty-year period. 
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The Finance, Operations & People (FOP) committee is a sub-committee of the main Governing Body, dealing 
with finance and operational matters. Its purpose, and that of its delegated sub-committees, is to assist the 
decision making of the Governing Body, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to the best means 
RI IXOILOOLQJ WKe GRYeUQLQJ BRd\'V UeVSRQVLbLOLW\ WR eQVXUe VRXQd PaQaJePeQW RI AOPa PULPaU\¶V ILQaQceV, 
estates and resources, including proper planning, monitoring and probity. It exercises the powers and duties of 
the Governing Body in respect of the financial, estates and resources administration of Alma Primary, except 
for those items specifically reserved for the Governing Body and those delegated to the Head teacher and 
other staff as described in the scheme of financial delegation. 
 
The FOP committee was co-chaired by David Grunwald and Edward Lewin throughout 2019/20, and the full 
Committee met 3 times during the period, with its Accounts subcommittee meeting three additional times. Its 
members are a mix of trustees and volunteers, with particular expertise, all of whom contribute to the 
cRPPLWWee¶V ZRUN b\ WaNLQJ UeVSRQVLbLOLW\ IRU SaUWLcXOaU SURMecWV RU WRSLcV ZLWKLQ WKe cRPPLWWee¶V UePLW. 
Examples of these include the school reserves policy, staff wellbeing and fundraising, among others. A 
Fundraising Subcommittee was convened and met once during the year. 
 
Three qualified accountants volunteered time as members of the FOP Committee: Howard Levene (who 
resigned from the committee mid-\eaU) AOe[LV CRU]beUJ aQd MaULRQ ReLQa EVcRbaU, ZKR LV AOPa PULPaU\¶V 
Responsible Officer.   
 
Attendance at full FOP meetings in the year was as follows:  
 

Trustee / Volunteer Meetings attended Out of a possible 
David Grunwald 2 3 
Edward Lewin 3 3 
Ilan Jacobs 3 3 
David Steadman 2 3 
James Burns 3 3 
Alexis Corzberg 2 3 
Marion Escobar Reina* 2 3 
Daryl Kaye 3 3 
Natalie Grazin 1 3 
Tabitha Allum 3 3 
Valerie Hamill (joined & resigned mid-year) 1 3 
Ruth Nyman 3 3 
Rachel Brodie 1 3 
Howard Levene (resigned mid-year 1 3 
Marc Shoffren (Headteacher) 3 3 
Rebecca Doctors (School Business 
Manager) 

2 3 

 
*Responsible Officer 
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REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY 
 
As Accounting Officer, Marc Shoffren, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust 
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money 
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received. 
 
The accounting officer considers how the Academy TrXVW¶V XVe RI LWV UeVRXUceV KaV SURYLded JRRd YaOXe IRU 
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, 
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Academy Trust has 
delivered improved value for money during the year by: 
 
x Making best use of available staff to support in-school and remote learning activities during the pandemic.  
x Use of school facilities to provide meals for a charity, mitigating losses on catering and letting the school to 

youth organisations over the summer break. 
x Controlling expenditure through careful monitoring and purchasing systems.  
 
THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk 
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify 
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Alma Primary for the period 1 
September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 
 
CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK 
 
The Governing Body has reviewed the key risks to which the school is exposed together with the operating, 
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Governing Body is of 
the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's 
significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Governing 
Body. 
 
THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK 
 
TKe AcadeP\ TUXVW¶V V\VWeP RI LQWeUQaO ILQaQcLaO cRQWURO LV baVed RQ a IUaPeZRUN RI UeJXOaU PaQaJePeQW 
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and 
accountability. In particular, it includes: 
 

x comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports 
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees. 

x regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial 
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure 
programmes. 

x setting targets to measure financial and other performance. 
x clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines. 
x delegation of authority and segregation of duties. 
x identification and management of risks. 
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The Governing Body has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided: 
 

x to appoint Marion Escobar Reina as Responsible Officer in the role of internal auditor. 

TKe ReVSRQVLbOe OIILceU¶V UROe LQcOXdeV JLYLQJ adYLce RQ ILQaQcLaO PaWWeUV aQd SeUIRUPLQJ a range of checks on 
WKe acadeP\ WUXVW¶V ILQaQcLaO V\VWePV. IQ SaUWLcXOaU WKe cKecNV caUULed RXW LQ WKe cXUUeQW SeULRd LQcOXded: 
 

x financial reporting. 
x processes for bank reconciliations. 
x ensuring that recommendations regarding VAT returns and others have been implemented. 

On a termly basis, the Responsible Officer reports to the Governing Body, through the Finance, Operations and 
People committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Governing BRd\¶V 
financial responsibilities. During the 2019-20 academic year, the Coronavirus pandemic impeded the ability of 
the Responsible Officer to visit more than twice, however both visits went well. The Trustees considered this and 
as there were no significant issues and no changes in staff or controls, the third visit could be delayed until it 
was safe to do so. Due to the number of staff available to the school the work involved with making the premises 
COVID secure the Trustees considered the safety of staff and students a higher priority than a third visit occurring 
on a timely basis. Therefore, the Trustees do not consider a breach of regularity to have occurred during the 
year. 
 
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 
 
As Accounting Officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by: 
 
x the work of the Responsible Officer 
x the work of the external auditor 
x the financial management and governance self-assessment  

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal 
control and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 
 
Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
«««««««««««««««  ««««««««««««««« 
Ilan Jacobs         Marc Shoffren 
Chair of Trustees  Accounting Officer 
 
Date:         Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22 December 202022 December 2020
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

AV accoXnWing officer of Alma Primar\ I haYe conVidered m\ reVponVibiliW\ Wo noWif\ Whe Academ\ board of
TrXVWeeV and Whe EdXcaWion and SkillV FXnding Agenc\ (ESFA) of maWerial irregXlariW\, improprieW\ and non-
compliance ZiWh WermV and condiWionV of all fXnding receiYed b\ Whe Academ\, Xnder Whe fXnding agreemenW in
place beWZeen Whe Academ\ and Whe SecreWar\ of SWaWe for EdXcaWion. AV parW of m\ conVideraWion I haYe had
dXe regard Wo Whe reqXiremenWV of Whe AcademieV Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm WhaW I and Whe Academ\ board of TrXVWeeV are able Wo idenWif\ an\ maWerial irregXlar or improper XVe of
all fXndV b\ Whe Academ\, or maWerial non-compliance ZiWh Whe WermV and condiWionV of fXnding Xnder Whe
Academ\'V fXnding agreemenW and Whe AcademieV Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm WhaW no inVWanceV of maWerial irregXlariW\, improprieW\ or fXnding non-compliance haYe been diVcoYered
Wo daWe. If an\ inVWanceV are idenWified afWer Whe daWe of WhiV VWaWemenW, WheVe Zill be noWified Wo Whe board of
TrXVWeeV and ESFA.

Marc Shoffren
AccoXnWing Officer 

DaWe: 
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

The TrXVWeeV (Zho are alVo Whe direcWorV of Whe chariWable compan\ for Whe pXrpoVeV of compan\ laZ) are
reVponVible for preparing Whe TrXVWeeV' ReporW and Whe financial VWaWemenWV in accordance ZiWh Whe AcademieV
AccoXnWV DirecWion pXbliVhed b\ Whe EdXcaWion and SkillV FXnding Agenc\, UniWed Kingdom AccoXnWing
SWandardV (UniWed Kingdom Generall\ AccepWed AccoXnWing PracWice) and applicable laZ and regXlaWionV.

Compan\ laZ reqXireV Whe TrXVWeeV Wo prepare financial VWaWemenWV for each financial \ear. Under compan\ laZ,
Whe TrXVWeeV mXVW noW approYe Whe financial VWaWemenWV XnleVV Whe\ are VaWiVfied WhaW Whe\ giYe a WrXe and fair
YieZ of Whe VWaWe of affairV of Whe chariWable compan\ and of iWV incoming reVoXrceV and applicaWion of reVoXrceV,
inclXding iWV income and e[pendiWXre, for WhaW period. In preparing WheVe financial VWaWemenWV, Whe TrXVWeeV are
reqXired Wo:

x VelecW VXiWable accoXnWing policieV and When appl\ Whem conViVWenWl\;
x obVerYe Whe meWhodV and principleV of Whe ChariWieV SORP 2019 and Whe AcademieV AccoXnWV DirecWion

2019 Wo 2020;
x make jXdgmenWV and accoXnWing eVWimaWeV WhaW are reaVonable and prXdenW;
x VWaWe ZheWher applicable UK AccoXnWing SWandardV haYe been folloZed, VXbjecW Wo an\ maWerial deparWXreV

diVcloVed and e[plained in Whe financial VWaWemenWV;
x prepare Whe financial VWaWemenWV on Whe going concern baViV XnleVV iW iV inappropriaWe Wo preVXme WhaW Whe

chariWable compan\ Zill conWinXe in bXVineVV.

The TrXVWeeV are reVponVible for keeping adeqXaWe accoXnWing recordV WhaW are VXfficienW Wo VhoZ and e[plain
Whe chariWable compan\'V WranVacWionV and diVcloVe ZiWh reaVonable accXrac\ aW an\ Wime Whe financial poViWion of
Whe chariWable compan\ and enable Whem Wo enVXre WhaW Whe financial VWaWemenWV compl\ ZiWh Whe CompanieV AcW
2006. The\ are alVo reVponVible for VafegXarding Whe aVVeWV of Whe chariWable compan\ and hence for Waking
reaVonable VWepV for Whe preYenWion and deWecWion of fraXd and oWher irregXlariWieV.

The TrXVWeeV are reVponVible for enVXring WhaW in iWV condXcW and operaWion Whe chariWable compan\ applieV
financial and oWher conWrolV, Zhich conform ZiWh Whe reqXiremenWV boWh of proprieW\ and of good financial
managemenW. The\ are alVo reVponVible for enVXring granWV receiYed from ESFA/DfE haYe been applied for Whe
pXrpoVeV inWended.

The TrXVWeeV are reVponVible for Whe mainWenance and inWegriW\ of Whe corporaWe and financial informaWion
inclXded on Whe chariWable compan\'V ZebViWe. LegiVlaWion in Whe UniWed Kingdom goYerning Whe preparaWion and
diVVeminaWion of financial VWaWemenWV ma\ differ from legiVlaWion in oWher jXriVdicWionV.

ApproYed b\ order of Whe memberV of Whe board of TrXVWeeV and Vigned on iWV behalf b\:

Ilan Jacobs
Chair of TrXVWeeV 

DaWe: 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF  ALMA
PRIMARY
 

Opinion

We haYe aXdiWed Whe financial VWaWemenWV of Alma Primar\ (Whe 'academ\') for Whe \ear ended 31 AXgXVW 2020
Zhich compriVe Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV, Whe Balance SheeW, Whe SWaWemenW of CaVh FloZV and Whe
relaWed noWeV, inclXding a VXmmar\ of VignificanW accoXnWing policieV. The financial reporWing frameZork WhaW haV
been applied in Wheir preparaWion iV applicable laZ, UniWed Kingdom AccoXnWing SWandardV (UniWed Kingdom
Generall\ AccepWed AccoXnWing PracWice), inclXding Financial ReporWing SWandard 102 'The Financial ReporWing
SWandard applicable in Whe UK and RepXblic of Ireland', Whe ChariWieV SORP 2019 and Whe AcademieV AccoXnWV
DirecWion 2019 Wo 2020 iVVXed b\ Whe EdXcaWion and SkillV FXnding Agenc\.

In oXr opinion Whe financial VWaWemenWV:
x giYe a WrXe and fair YieZ of Whe VWaWe of Whe Academ\'V affairV aV aW 31 AXgXVW 2020 and of iWV incoming

reVoXrceV and applicaWion of reVoXrceV, inclXding iWV income and e[pendiWXre for Whe \ear When ended;
x haYe been properl\ prepared in accordance ZiWh UniWed Kingdom Generall\ AccepWed AccoXnWing

PracWice; and
x haYe been prepared in accordance ZiWh Whe reqXiremenWV of Whe CompanieV AcW 2006, Whe ChariWieV SORP

2019 and Whe AcademieV AccoXnWV DirecWion 2019 Wo 2020 iVVXed b\ Whe EdXcaWion and SkillV FXnding
Agenc\.

Basis for opinion

We condXcWed oXr aXdiW in accordance ZiWh InWernaWional SWandardV on AXdiWing (UK) (ISAV (UK)) and applicable
laZ. OXr reVponVibiliWieV Xnder WhoVe VWandardV are fXrWher deVcribed in Whe AXdiWorV' reVponVibiliWieV for Whe aXdiW
of Whe financial VWaWemenWV VecWion of oXr reporW. We are independenW of Whe Academ\ in accordance ZiWh Whe
eWhical reqXiremenWV WhaW are releYanW Wo oXr aXdiW of Whe financial VWaWemenWV in Whe UniWed Kingdom, inclXding
Whe Financial ReporWing CoXncil'V EWhical SWandard, and Ze haYe fXlfilled oXr oWher eWhical reVponVibiliWieV in
accordance ZiWh WheVe reqXiremenWV. We belieYe WhaW Whe aXdiW eYidence Ze haYe obWained iV VXfficienW and
appropriaWe Wo proYide a baViV for oXr opinion.

ConclXsions relaWing Wo going concern

We haYe noWhing Wo reporW in reVpecW of Whe folloZing maWWerV in relaWion Wo Zhich Whe ISAV (UK) reqXire XV Wo
reporW Wo \oX Zhere:
x Whe TrXVWeeV' XVe of Whe going concern baViV of accoXnWing in Whe preparaWion of Whe financial VWaWemenWV iV

noW appropriaWe; or
x Whe TrXVWeeV haYe noW diVcloVed in Whe financial VWaWemenWV an\ idenWified maWerial XncerWainWieV WhaW ma\

caVW VignificanW doXbW aboXW Whe Academ\'V abiliW\ Wo conWinXe Wo adopW Whe going concern baViV of
accoXnWing for a period of aW leaVW WZelYe monWhV from Whe daWe Zhen Whe financial VWaWemenWV are
aXWhoriVed for iVVXe.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF  ALMA
PRIMARY (CONTINUED)

OWher informaWion

The TrXVWeeV are reVponVible for Whe oWher informaWion. The oWher informaWion compriVeV Whe informaWion inclXded
in Whe AnnXal ReporW, oWher Whan Whe financial VWaWemenWV and oXr AXdiWorV' ReporW Whereon. OWher informaWion
inclXdeV Whe Reference and AdminiVWraWiYe DeWailV, Whe TrXVWeeV' ReporW inclXding Whe SWraWegic ReporW, and Whe
GoYernance SWaWemenW. OXr opinion on Whe financial VWaWemenWV doeV noW coYer Whe oWher informaWion and,
e[cepW Wo Whe e[WenW oWherZiVe e[pliciWl\ VWaWed in oXr reporW, Ze do noW e[preVV an\ form of aVVXrance conclXVion
Whereon.

In connecWion ZiWh oXr aXdiW of Whe financial VWaWemenWV, oXr reVponVibiliW\ iV Wo read Whe oWher informaWion and, in
doing Vo, conVider ZheWher Whe oWher informaWion iV maWeriall\ inconViVWenW ZiWh Whe financial VWaWemenWV or oXr
knoZledge obWained in Whe aXdiW or oWherZiVe appearV Wo be maWeriall\ miVVWaWed. If Ze idenWif\ VXch maWerial
inconViVWencieV or apparenW maWerial miVVWaWemenWV, Ze are reqXired Wo deWermine ZheWher Where iV a maWerial
miVVWaWemenW in Whe financial VWaWemenWV or a maWerial miVVWaWemenW of Whe oWher informaWion. If, baVed on Whe
Zork Ze haYe performed, Ze conclXde WhaW Where iV a maWerial miVVWaWemenW of WhiV oWher informaWion, Ze are
reqXired Wo reporW WhaW facW.

We haYe noWhing Wo reporW in WhiV regard.

Opinion on oWher maWWers prescribed b\ Whe Companies AcW 2006
 
In oXr opinion, baVed on Whe Zork XnderWaken in Whe coXrVe of Whe aXdiW:
x Whe informaWion giYen in Whe TrXVWeeV' ReporW inclXding Whe SWraWegic ReporW for Whe financial \ear for Zhich

Whe financial VWaWemenWV are prepared iV conViVWenW ZiWh Whe financial VWaWemenWV.
x Whe TrXVWeeV' ReporW and Whe SWraWegic ReporW haYe been prepared in accordance ZiWh applicable legal

reqXiremenWV.

MaWWers on Zhich Ze are reqXired Wo reporW b\ e[cepWion

In Whe lighW of oXr knoZledge and XnderVWanding of Whe Academ\ and iWV enYironmenW obWained in Whe coXrVe of
Whe aXdiW, Ze haYe noW idenWified maWerial miVVWaWemenWV in Whe TrXVWeeV' ReporW inclXding Whe SWraWegic ReporW.

We haYe noWhing Wo reporW in reVpecW of Whe folloZing maWWerV in relaWion Wo Zhich Whe CompanieV AcW 2006
reqXireV XV Wo reporW Wo \oX if, in oXr opinion:
x adeqXaWe accoXnWing recordV haYe noW been kepW, or reWXrnV adeqXaWe for oXr aXdiW haYe noW been

receiYed from brancheV noW YiViWed b\ XV; or
x Whe financial VWaWemenWV are noW in agreemenW ZiWh Whe accoXnWing recordV and reWXrnV; or
x cerWain diVcloVXreV of TrXVWeeV' remXneraWion Vpecified b\ laZ are noW made; or
x Ze haYe noW receiYed all Whe informaWion and e[planaWionV Ze reqXire for oXr aXdiW.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF  ALMA
PRIMARY (CONTINUED)

ResponsibiliWies of WrXsWees

AV e[plained more fXll\ in Whe TrXVWeeV' ReVponVibiliWieV SWaWemenW, Whe TrXVWeeV (Zho are alVo Whe direcWorV of
Whe Academ\ for Whe pXrpoVeV of compan\ laZ) are reVponVible for Whe preparaWion of Whe financial VWaWemenWV
and for being VaWiVfied WhaW Whe\ giYe a WrXe and fair YieZ, and for VXch inWernal conWrol aV Whe TrXVWeeV deWermine
iV neceVVar\ Wo enable Whe preparaWion of financial VWaWemenWV WhaW are free from maWerial miVVWaWemenW, ZheWher
dXe Wo fraXd or error.

In preparing Whe financial VWaWemenWV, Whe TrXVWeeV are reVponVible for aVVeVVing Whe Academ\'V abiliW\ Wo
conWinXe aV a going concern, diVcloVing, aV applicable, maWWerV relaWed Wo going concern and XVing Whe going
concern baViV of accoXnWing XnleVV Whe TrXVWeeV eiWher inWend Wo liqXidaWe Whe Academ\ or Wo ceaVe operaWionV,
or haYe no realiVWic alWernaWiYe bXW Wo do Vo.
 
AXdiWors' responsibiliWies for Whe aXdiW of Whe financial sWaWemenWs

OXr objecWiYeV are Wo obWain reaVonable aVVXrance aboXW ZheWher Whe financial VWaWemenWV aV a Zhole are free
from maWerial miVVWaWemenW, ZheWher dXe Wo fraXd or error, and Wo iVVXe an AXdiWorV' ReporW WhaW inclXdeV oXr
opinion. ReaVonable aVVXrance iV a high leYel of aVVXrance, bXW iV noW a gXaranWee WhaW an aXdiW condXcWed in
accordance ZiWh ISAV (UK) Zill alZa\V deWecW a maWerial miVVWaWemenW Zhen iW e[iVWV. MiVVWaWemenWV can ariVe
from fraXd or error and are conVidered maWerial if, indiYidXall\ or in Whe aggregaWe, Whe\ coXld reaVonabl\ be
e[pecWed Wo inflXence Whe economic deciVionV of XVerV Waken on Whe baViV of WheVe financial VWaWemenWV.

A fXrWher deVcripWion of oXr reVponVibiliWieV for Whe aXdiW of Whe financial VWaWemenWV iV locaWed on Whe Financial
ReporWing CoXncil'V ZebViWe aW: ZZZ.frc.org.Xk/aXdiWorVreVponVibiliWieV. ThiV deVcripWion formV parW of oXr
AXdiWorV' ReporW.
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ALMA PRIMARY
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

 

  
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF  ALMA
PRIMARY (CONTINUED)

Use of oXr reporW
 
ThiV reporW iV made Volel\ Wo Whe Academ\'V memberV, aV a bod\, in accordance ZiWh ChapWer 3 of ParW 16 of Whe
CompanieV AcW 2006. OXr aXdiW Zork haV been XnderWaken Vo WhaW Ze mighW VWaWe Wo Whe Academ\'V memberV
WhoVe maWWerV Ze are reqXired Wo VWaWe Wo Whem in an AXdiWorV' ReporW and for no oWher pXrpoVe. To Whe fXlleVW
e[WenW permiWWed b\ laZ, Ze do noW accepW or aVVXme reVponVibiliW\ Wo an\one oWher Whan Whe Academ\ and iWV
memberV, aV a bod\, for oXr aXdiW Zork, for WhiV reporW, or for Whe opinionV Ze haYe formed.

Brendan Sharke\ FCA (Senior SWaWXWor\ AXdiWor)
for and on behalf of
MHA MacInW\re HXdson
CharWered AccoXnWanWV
SWaWXWor\ AXdiWorV
6Wh Floor
2 London Wall Place
London
EC2Y 5AU

DaWe: 

Page 22

05 January 2021



 
ALMA PRIMARY
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

 

  
INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ALMA
PRIMARY AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance ZiWh Whe WermV of oXr engagemenW leWWer daWed 03 SepWember 2020 and fXrWher Wo Whe reqXiremenWV
of Whe EdXcaWion and SkillV FXnding Agenc\ (ESFA) aV inclXded in Whe AcademieV AccoXnWV DirecWion 2019 Wo
2020, Ze haYe carried oXW an engagemenW Wo obWain limiWed aVVXrance aboXW ZheWher Whe e[pendiWXre diVbXrVed
and income receiYed b\ Alma Primar\ dXring Whe \ear 1 SepWember 2019 Wo 31 AXgXVW 2020 haYe been applied
Wo Whe pXrpoVeV idenWified b\ ParliamenW and Whe financial WranVacWionV conform Wo Whe aXWhoriWieV Zhich goYern
Whem.

ThiV reporW iV made Volel\ Wo Alma Primar\ and ESFA in accordance ZiWh Whe WermV of oXr engagemenW leWWer.
OXr Zork haV been XnderWaken Vo WhaW Ze mighW VWaWe Wo Alma Primar\ and ESFA WhoVe maWWerV Ze are reqXired
Wo VWaWe in a reporW and for no oWher pXrpoVe. To Whe fXlleVW e[WenW permiWWed b\ laZ, Ze do noW accepW or aVVXme
reVponVibiliW\ Wo an\one oWher Whan Alma Primar\ and ESFA, for oXr Zork, for WhiV reporW, or for Whe conclXVion Ze
haYe formed.

RespecWiYe responsibiliWies of Alma Primar\'s accoXnWing officer and Whe reporWing accoXnWanW

The accoXnWing officer iV reVponVible, Xnder Whe reqXiremenWV of Alma Primar\'V fXnding agreemenW ZiWh Whe
SecreWar\ of SWaWe for EdXcaWion daWed 30 March 2012 and Whe AcademieV Financial Handbook, e[WanW from 1
SepWember 2019, for enVXring WhaW e[pendiWXre diVbXrVed and income receiYed iV applied for Whe pXrpoVeV
inWended b\ ParliamenW and Whe financial WranVacWionV conform Wo Whe aXWhoriWieV Zhich goYern Whem.

OXr reVponVibiliWieV for WhiV engagemenW are eVWabliVhed in Whe UniWed Kingdom b\ oXr profeVVion'V eWhical
gXidance and are Wo obWain limiWed aVVXrance and reporW in accordance ZiWh oXr engagemenW leWWer and Whe
reqXiremenWV of Whe AcademieV AccoXnWV DirecWion 2019 Wo 2020. We reporW Wo \oX ZheWher an\Whing haV come
Wo oXr aWWenWion in carr\ing oXW oXr Zork Zhich VXggeVWV WhaW in all maWerial reVpecWV, e[pendiWXre diVbXrVed and
income receiYed dXring Whe \ear 1 SepWember 2019 Wo 31 AXgXVW 2020 haYe noW been applied Wo pXrpoVeV
inWended b\ ParliamenW or WhaW Whe financial WranVacWionV do noW conform Wo Whe aXWhoriWieV Zhich goYern Whem.
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ALMA PRIMARY
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

 

  
INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ALMA
PRIMARY AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Approach

We condXcWed oXr engagemenW in accordance ZiWh Whe AcademieV AccoXnWV DirecWion 2019 Wo 2020 iVVXed b\
ESFA. We performed a limiWed aVVXrance engagemenW aV defined in oXr engagemenW leWWer.

The objecWiYe of a limiWed aVVXrance engagemenW iV Wo perform VXch procedXreV aV Wo obWain informaWion and
e[planaWionV in order Wo proYide XV ZiWh VXfficienW appropriaWe eYidence Wo e[preVV a negaWiYe conclXVion on
regXlariW\.

A limiWed aVVXrance engagemenW iV more limiWed in Vcope Whan a reaVonable aVVXrance engagemenW and
conVeqXenWl\ doeV noW enable XV Wo obWain aVVXrance WhaW Ze ZoXld become aZare of all VignificanW maWWerV WhaW
mighW be idenWified in a reaVonable aVVXrance engagemenW. Accordingl\, Ze do noW e[preVV a poViWiYe opinion.

OXr engagemenW inclXdeV e[aminaWion, on a WeVW baViV, of eYidence releYanW Wo Whe regXlariW\ and proprieW\ of Whe
Academ\'V income and e[pendiWXre.

The Zork XnderWaken Wo draZ Wo oXr conclXVion inclXdeV:

� ReYieZing Whe minXWeV of Whe meeWingV of Whe GoYerning Bod\ and oWher eYidence made aYailable Wo XV,
releYanW Wo oXr conVideraWion of regXlariW\;

� A reYieZ of Whe objecWiYeV and acWiYiWieV of Whe academ\, ZiWh reference Wo Whe income VWreamV and oWher
informaWion aYailable Wo XV aV aXdiWorV of Whe academ\;

� TeVWing a Vample of pa\roll pa\menWV Wo VWaff;

� TeVWing a Vample of pa\menWV Wo VXpplierV and oWher Whird parWieV;

� ConVideraWion of goYernance iVVXeV; and

� EYalXaWing Whe inWernal conWrol procedXreV and reporWing lineV, and WeVWing aV appropriaWe and making
appropriaWe enqXirieV of Whe AccoXnWing Officer.

ConclXsion

In Whe coXrVe of oXr Zork, noWhing haV come Wo oXr aWWenWion Zhich VXggeVW in all maWerial reVpecWV Whe
e[pendiWXre diVbXrVed and income receiYed dXring Whe \ear 1 SepWember 2019 Wo 31 AXgXVW 2020 haV noW been
applied Wo pXrpoVeV inWended b\ ParliamenW and Whe financial WranVacWionV do noW conform Wo Whe aXWhoriWieV Zhich
goYern Whem.

ReporWing AccoXnWanW
MHA MacInW\re HXdson
CharWered AccoXnWanWV
SWaWXWor\ AXdiWorV
6Wh Floor
2 London Wall Place
London
EC2Y 5AU

DaWe: 
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ALMA PRIMARY 
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

  
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

UnresWricWed
fXnds
2020

ResWricWed
fXnds
2020

ResWricWed
fi[ed asseW

fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXndV
2019

NoWe         �         �         �         �         �

Income from:
DonaWionV and capiWal
granWV 3 171,089 - 13,580 184,669 281,627 
ChariWable acWiYiWieV 4 133,325 1,030,380 - 1,163,705 987,894 
OWher Wrading acWiYiWieV 5 62,612 - - 62,612 81,406 

ToWal income 367,026 1,030,380 13,580 1,410,986 1,350,927

E[pendiWXre on:
ChariWable acWiYiWieV 7 446,914 1,072,478 157,673 1,677,065 1,467,505 

ToWal e[pendiWXre 446,914 1,072,478 157,673 1,677,065 1,467,505

NeW moYemenW in
fXnds before oWher
recognised
gains/(losses)   (79,888) (42,098) (144,093) (266,079) (116,578)

OWher recognised
gains/(losses):   
AcWXarial gainV/(loVVeV)
on defined benefiW
penVion VchemeV  21 - 66,000 - 66,000 (102,000) 

NeW moYemenW in
fXnds   (79,888) 23,902 (144,093) (200,079) (218,578)

ReconciliaWion of
fXnds:   
ToWal fXndV broXghW
forZard  15 285,031 (229,000) 7,337,340 7,393,371 7,611,949 
NeW moYemenW in fXndV  15 (79,888) 23,902 (144,093) (200,079) (218,578) 

ToWal fXnds carried
forZard   205,143 (205,098) 7,193,247 7,193,292 7,393,371

The SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV inclXdeV all gainV and loVVeV recogniVed in Whe \ear.

The noWeV on pageV 29 Wo 53 form parW of WheVe financial VWaWemenWV.
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ALMA PRIMARY 
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07958546

  
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

2020 2019
NoWe � �

Fi[ed asseWs   

Tangible aVVeWV  12 7,181,372 7,326,235

  7,181,372 7,326,235
CXrrenW asseWs   

DebWorV  13 74,198 76,946
CaVh  19 269,535 298,578

  343,733 375,524

CrediWorV: amoXnWV falling dXe ZiWhin one
\ear  14 (124,813) (79,388)

NeW cXrrenW asseWs    
 

218,920  
 

296,136

ToWal asseWs less cXrrenW liabiliWies   7,400,292 7,622,371

NeW asseWs e[clXding pension liabiliW\   7,400,292 7,622,371

Defined benefiW penVion Vcheme liabiliW\  21 (207,000) (229,000)

ToWal neW asseWs   7,193,292 7,393,371

FXnds of Whe Academ\   
ResWricWed income fXnds:   

ReVWricWed fi[ed aVVeW fXndV  15 7,193,247 7,337,340
ReVWricWed income fXndV  15 1,902 -

ReVWricWed fXndV e[clXding penVion aVVeW  15 7,195,149 7,337,340

PenVion reVerYe  15 (207,000) (229,000)

ToWal resWricWed fXnds  15  
 

6,988,149  
 

7,108,340
UnresWricWed income fXnds  15 205,143 285,031

ToWal fXnds   7,193,292 7,393,371
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ALMA PRIMARY 
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 07958546

  
BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2020

The financial VWaWemenWV haYe been prepared in accordance ZiWh Whe proYiVionV applicable Wo enWiWieV VXbjecW Wo
Whe Vmall companieV regime.

The financial VWaWemenWV on pageV 25 Wo 53 Zere approYed and aXWhoriVed for iVVXe b\ Whe TrXVWeeV and are
Vigned on Wheir behalf, b\:

Ilan Jacobs
Chair of TrXVWeeV 

Marc Shoffren
AccoXnWing Officer

DaWe: 

The noWeV on pageV 29 Wo 53 form parW of WheVe financial VWaWemenWV.
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ALMA PRIMARY 
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

  
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

2020 2019
NoWe � �

Cash floZs from operaWing acWiYiWies

NeW caVh (XVed in)/proYided b\ operaWing acWiYiWieV  17 (29,183) 16,008

Cash floZs from inYesWing acWiYiWies  18 140 9,225

Change in cash and cash eqXiYalenWs in Whe \ear   
 

(29,043)
 

25,233

CaVh and caVh eqXiYalenWV aW Whe beginning of Whe \ear   298,578 273,345

Cash and cash eqXiYalenWs aW Whe end of Whe \ear  19, 20 269,535 298,578

The noWeV on pageV 29 Wo 53 form parW of WheVe financial VWaWemenWV

Page 28



 
ALMA PRIMARY
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1. AccoXnWing policies

Alma Primar\ iV a compan\ limiWed b\ gXaranWee, incorporaWed in England. The addreVV of Whe
regiVWered office and principal place of operaWion are deWailed on page 1. The naWXre of Whe Academ\
TrXVW'V operaWionV and principal acWiYiW\ are deWailed in Whe TrXVWeeV ReporW.

A VXmmar\ of Whe principal accoXnWing policieV adopWed (Zhich haYe been applied conViVWenWl\,
e[cepW Zhere noWed), jXdgmenWV and ke\ VoXrceV of eVWimaWion XncerWainW\, iV VeW oXW beloZ.

  
1.1 Basis of preparaWion of financial sWaWemenWs

The financial VWaWemenWV of Whe Academ\, Zhich iV a pXblic benefiW enWiW\ Xnder FRS 102, haYe been
prepared Xnder Whe hiVWoric coVW conYenWion in accordance ZiWh Whe Financial ReporWing SWandard
Applicable in Whe UK and RepXblic of Ireland (FRS 102), Whe AccoXnWing and ReporWing b\ ChariWieV:
SWaWemenW of Recommended PracWice applicable Wo chariWieV preparing Wheir accoXnWV in accordance
ZiWh Whe Financial ReporWing SWandard applicable in Whe UK and RepXblic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(ChariWieV SORP (FRS 102)), Whe AcademieV AccoXnWV DirecWion 2019 Wo 2020 iVVXed b\ ESFA, Whe
ChariWieV AcW 2011 and Whe CompanieV AcW 2006.

Alma Primar\ meeWV Whe definiWion of a pXblic benefiW enWiW\ Xnder FRS 102.

Alma Primar\ iV a compan\ limiWed b\ gXaranWee incorporaWed in England and WaleV. The addreVV of
Whe regiVWered office, principal place of operaWion and regiVWered nXmber are deWailed on page 1. The
naWXre of Whe Academ\ TrXVW¶V operaWionV and principal acWiYiW\ are deWailed in Whe TrXVWeeV ReporW.

The financial VWaWemenWV are prepared in poXndV VWerling, Whe fXncWional cXrrenc\, roXnded Wo Whe
neareVW �1.

  
1.2 Going concern

The TrXVWeeV haYe aVVeVVed Whe XVe of going concern and haYe conVidered poVVible eYenWV or
condiWionV WhaW mighW caVW VignificanW doXbW on Whe abiliW\ of Whe TrXVW Wo conWinXe aV a going concern
inclXding Whe impacW of COVID-19. The TrXVWeeV haYe made WhiV aVVeVVmenW for a period of aW leaVW
one \ear from Whe daWe of Whe approYal of WheVe financial VWaWemenWV. The TrXVWeeV haYe conclXded
WhaW Where iV a reaVonable e[pecWaWion WhaW Whe TrXVW haV adeqXaWe reVoXrceV Wo conWinXe in
operaWional e[iVWence for Whe foreVeeable fXWXre and Where are no maWerial XncerWainWieV aboXW Whe
TrXVW'V abiliW\ Wo conWinXe aV a going concern. The TrXVW Wherefore conWinXeV Wo adopW Whe going
concern baViV in preparing WheVe financial VWaWemenWV.
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ALMA PRIMARY
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1. AccoXnWing policies (conWinXed)

  
1.3 Income

All incoming reVoXrceV are recogniVed Zhen Whe Academ\ haV enWiWlemenW Wo Whe fXndV, Whe receipW iV
probable and Whe amoXnW can be meaVXred reliabl\.

x GranWs
GranWV are inclXded in Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV on a receiYable baViV. The balance of
income receiYed for Vpecific pXrpoVeV bXW noW e[pended dXring Whe period iV VhoZn in Whe releYanW
fXndV on Whe Balance SheeW. Where income iV receiYed in adYance of meeWing an\ performance-
relaWed condiWionV Where iV noW XncondiWional enWiWlemenW Wo Whe income and iWV recogniWion iV deferred
and inclXded in crediWorV aV deferred income XnWil Whe performance-relaWed condiWionV are meW. Where
enWiWlemenW occXrV before income iV receiYed, Whe income iV accrXed.

General AnnXal GranW iV recogniVed in fXll in Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV in Whe \ear for Zhich
iW iV receiYable and an\ abaWemenW in reVpecW of Whe \ear iV dedXcWed from income and recogniVed aV
a liabiliW\.

CapiWal granWV are recogniVed in fXll Zhen Where iV an XncondiWional enWiWlemenW Wo Whe granW. UnVpenW
amoXnWV of capiWal granWV are reflecWed in Whe Balance SheeW in Whe reVWricWed fi[ed aVVeW fXnd. CapiWal
granWV are recogniVed Zhen Where iV enWiWlemenW and are noW deferred oYer Whe life of Whe aVVeW on
Zhich Whe\ are e[pended.

x Sponsorship income
SponVorVhip income proYided Wo Whe Academ\ Zhich amoXnWV Wo a donaWion iV recogniVed in Whe
SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV in Whe \ear in Zhich iW iV receiYable (Zhere Where are no performance-
relaWed condiWionV) Zhere receipW iV probable and iW can be meaVXred reliabl\.

x DonaWions
DonaWionV are recogniVed on a receiYable baViV (Zhere Where are no performance-relaWed condiWionV)
Zhere Whe receipW iV probable and Whe amoXnW can be reliabl\ meaVXred.

x OWher income
OWher income, inclXding Whe hire of faciliWieV, iV recogniVed in Whe \ear iW iV receiYable and Wo Whe e[WenW
Whe Academ\ haV proYided Whe goodV or VerYiceV.

x DonaWed goods, faciliWies and serYices
GoodV donaWed for reVale are inclXded aW fair YalXe, being Whe e[pecWed proceedV from Vale leVV Whe
e[pecWed coVWV of Vale. If iW iV pracWical Wo aVVeVV Whe fair YalXe aW receipW, iW iV recogniVed in 'SWockV'
and µIncome from OWher Trading AcWiYiWieV¶. Upon Vale, Whe YalXe of Whe VWock iV charged againVW
µIncome from OWher Trading AcWiYiWieV¶ and Whe proceedV are recogniVed aV µIncome from OWher
Trading AcWiYiWieV¶. Where iW iV impracWical Wo fair YalXe Whe iWemV dXe Wo Whe YolXme of loZ YalXe iWemV
Whe\ are noW recogniVed in Whe financial VWaWemenWV XnWil Whe\ are Vold. ThiV income iV recogniVed
ZiWhin µIncome from OWher Trading AcWiYiWieV¶.
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ALMA PRIMARY
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

1. AccoXnWing policies (conWinXed)

  
1.4 E[pendiWXre

E[pendiWXre iV recogniVed once Where iV a legal or conVWrXcWiYe obligaWion Wo WranVfer economic benefiW
Wo a Whird parW\, iW iV probable WhaW a WranVfer of economic benefiWV Zill be reqXired in VeWWlemenW and
Whe amoXnW of Whe obligaWion can be meaVXred reliabl\. E[pendiWXre iV claVVified b\ acWiYiW\. The coVWV
of each acWiYiW\ are made Xp of Whe WoWal of direcW coVWV and Vhared coVWV, inclXding VXpporW coVWV
inYolYed in XnderWaking each acWiYiW\. DirecW coVWV aWWribXWable Wo a Vingle acWiYiW\ are allocaWed direcWl\
Wo WhaW acWiYiW\. Shared coVWV Zhich conWribXWe Wo more Whan one acWiYiW\ and VXpporW coVWV Zhich are
noW aWWribXWable Wo a Vingle acWiYiW\ are apporWioned beWZeen WhoVe acWiYiWieV on a baViV conViVWenW ZiWh
Whe XVe of reVoXrceV. CenWral VWaff coVWV are allocaWed on Whe baViV of Wime VpenW, and depreciaWion
chargeV allocaWed on Whe porWion of Whe aVVeW¶V XVe.

TerminaWion benefiWV are inclXded in VWaff coVWV and are pa\able Zhen emplo\menW iV WerminaWed b\
Whe academ\ before reWiremenW daWe, or ZheneYer an emplo\ee accepWV YolXnWar\ redXndanc\ in
e[change for WerminaWion benefiWV.

x E[pendiWXre on raising fXnds
ThiV inclXdeV all e[pendiWXre incXrred b\ Whe Academ\ Wo raiVe fXndV for iWV chariWable pXrpoVeV and
inclXdeV coVWV of all fXndraiVing acWiYiWieV eYenWV and non-chariWable Wrading.

x ChariWable acWiYiWies
TheVe are coVWV incXrred on Whe Academ\'V edXcaWional operaWionV, inclXding VXpporW coVWV and coVWV
relaWing Wo Whe goYernance of Whe Academ\ apporWioned Wo chariWable acWiYiWieV.

All reVoXrceV e[pended are inclXViYe of irrecoYerable VAT.

  
1.5 Ta[aWion

The Academ\ iV conVidered Wo paVV Whe WeVWV VeW oXW in Paragraph 1 SchedXle 6 of Whe Finance AcW
2010 and Wherefore iW meeWV Whe definiWion of a chariWable compan\ for UK corporaWion Wa[ pXrpoVeV.

Accordingl\, Whe Academ\ iV poWenWiall\ e[empW from Wa[aWion in reVpecW of income or capiWal gainV
receiYed ZiWhin caWegorieV coYered b\ ParW 11, chapWer 3 of Whe CorporaWion Ta[ AcW 2010 or SecWion
256 of Whe Ta[aWion of Chargeable GainV AcW 1992, Wo Whe e[WenW WhaW VXch income or gainV are
applied e[clXViYel\ Wo chariWable pXrpoVeV.
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ALMA PRIMARY
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1. AccoXnWing policies (conWinXed)

 
1.6 Tangible fi[ed asseWs

AVVeWV coVWing �2,000 or more are capiWaliVed aV Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV and are carried aW coVW, neW of
depreciaWion and an\ proYiVion for impairmenW.

Where Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV haYe been acqXired ZiWh Whe aid of Vpecific granWV, eiWher from Whe
goYernmenW or from Whe priYaWe VecWor, Whe\ are inclXded in Whe Balance SheeW aW coVW and
depreciaWed oYer Wheir e[pecWed XVefXl economic life. Where Where are Vpecific condiWionV aWWached Wo
Whe fXnding reqXiring Whe conWinXed XVe of Whe aVVeW, Whe relaWed granWV are crediWed Wo a reVWricWed
fi[ed aVVeW fXnd in Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV and carried forZard in Whe Balance SheeW.
DepreciaWion on Whe releYanW aVVeWV iV charged direcWl\ Wo Whe reVWricWed fi[ed aVVeW fXnd in Whe
SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV. Where Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV haYe been acqXired ZiWh XnreVWricWed
fXndV, depreciaWion on VXch aVVeWV iV charged Wo Whe XnreVWricWed fXnd.

DepreciaWion iV proYided on all Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV oWher Whan freehold land and aVVeWV Xnder
conVWrXcWion, aW raWeV calcXlaWed Wo ZriWe off Whe coVW of each aVVeW on a VWraighW-line baViV oYer iWV
e[pecWed XVefXl life, aV folloZV:

DepreciaWion iV proYided on Whe folloZing baVeV:

FXrniWXre and fi[WXreV - 5 - 20 \earV VWraighW line
Freehold land - NoW depreciaWed
Freehold bXildingV - 50 \earV VWraighW line
CompXWer eqXipmenW - 4 \earV VWraighW line

A reYieZ for impairmenW of a fi[ed aVVeW iV carried oXW if eYenWV or changeV in circXmVWanceV indicaWe
WhaW Whe carr\ing YalXe of an\ fi[ed aVVeW ma\ noW be recoYerable. ShorWfallV beWZeen Whe carr\ing
YalXe of fi[ed aVVeWV and Wheir recoYerable amoXnWV are recogniVed aV impairmenWV. ImpairmenW
loVVeV are recogniVed in Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV.

  
1.7 SWocks

SWockV are YalXed aW Whe loZer of coVW and neW realiVable YalXe afWer making dXe alloZance for
obVoleWe and VloZ-moYing VWockV. CoVW inclXdeV all direcW coVWV and an appropriaWe proporWion of fi[ed
and Yariable oYerheadV.

  
1.8 DebWors

Trade and oWher debWorV are recogniVed aW Whe VeWWlemenW amoXnW afWer an\ Wrade diVcoXnW offered.
Prepa\menWV are YalXed aW Whe amoXnW prepaid neW of an\ Wrade diVcoXnWV dXe.

  
1.9 Cash aW bank and in hand

CaVh aW bank and in hand inclXdeV caVh and VhorW-Werm highl\ liqXid inYeVWmenWV ZiWh a VhorW maWXriW\
of Whree monWhV or leVV from Whe daWe of acqXiViWion or opening of Whe depoViW or Vimilar accoXnW.
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1.10 LiabiliWies

LiabiliWieV are recogniVed Zhen Where iV an obligaWion aW Whe Balance SheeW daWe aV a reVXlW of a paVW
eYenW, iW iV probable WhaW a WranVfer of economic benefiW Zill be reqXired in VeWWlemenW, and Whe amoXnW
of Whe VeWWlemenW can be eVWimaWed reliabl\. LiabiliWieV are recogniVed aW Whe amoXnW WhaW Whe Academ\
anWicipaWeV iW Zill pa\ Wo VeWWle Whe debW or Whe amoXnW iW haV receiYed aV adYanced pa\menWV for Whe
goodV or VerYiceV iW mXVW proYide.

  
1.11 Financial insWrXmenWs

The Academ\ onl\ holdV baVic financial inVWrXmenWV aV defined in FRS 102. The financial aVVeWV and
financial liabiliWieV of Whe Academ\ and Wheir meaVXremenW baVeV are aV folloZV:

FLQaQFLaO aVVHWV - Wrade and oWher debWorV are baVic financial inVWrXmenWV and are debW inVWrXmenWV
meaVXred aW amorWiVed coVW aV deWailed in noWe 13. Prepa\menWV are noW financial inVWrXmenWV. 

CaVh aW bank iV claVVified aV a baVic financial inVWrXmenW and iV meaVXred aW face YalXe.

FLQaQFLaO OLabLOLWLHV - Wrade crediWorV, accrXalV and oWher crediWorV are financial inVWrXmenWV, and are
meaVXred aW amorWiVed coVW aV deWailed in noWe 14. Ta[aWion and Vocial VecXriW\ are noW inclXded in
Whe financial inVWrXmenWV diVcloVXre definiWion. Deferred income iV noW deemed Wo be a financial
liabiliW\, aV Whe caVh VeWWlemenW haV alread\ Waken place and Where iV an obligaWion Wo deliYer VerYiceV
raWher Whan caVh or anoWher financial inVWrXmenW.

  
1.12 OperaWing leases

RenWalV paid Xnder operaWing leaVeV are charged Wo Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV on a VWraighW
line baViV oYer Whe leaVe Werm.
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1.13 Pensions

ReWiremenW benefiWV Wo emplo\eeV of Whe Academ\ are proYided b\ Whe TeacherV' PenVion Scheme
("TPS") and Whe Local GoYernmenW PenVion Scheme ("LGPS"). TheVe are defined benefiW VchemeV.

The TPS iV an XnfXnded Vcheme and conWribXWionV are calcXlaWed Vo aV Wo Vpread Whe coVW of
penVionV oYer emplo\eeV¶ Zorking liYeV ZiWh Whe Academ\ in VXch a Za\ WhaW Whe penVion coVW iV a
VXbVWanWiall\ leYel percenWage of cXrrenW and fXWXre penVionable pa\roll. The conWribXWionV are
deWermined b\ Whe GoYernmenW AcWXar\ on Whe baViV of qXadrennial YalXaWionV XVing a proVpecWiYe
XniW crediW meWhod. TPS iV an XnfXnded mXlWi-emplo\er Vcheme ZiWh no Xnderl\ing aVVeWV Wo aVVign
beWZeen emplo\erV. ConVeqXenWl\, Whe TPS iV WreaWed aV a defined conWribXWion Vcheme for
accoXnWing pXrpoVeV and Whe conWribXWionV recogniVed in Whe period Wo Zhich Whe\ relaWe.

The LGPS iV a fXnded mXlWi-emplo\er Vcheme and Whe aVVeWV are held VeparaWel\ from WhoVe of Whe
Academ\ in VeparaWe WrXVWee adminiVWered fXndV. PenVion Vcheme aVVeWV are meaVXred aW fair YalXe
and liabiliWieV are meaVXred on an acWXarial baViV XVing Whe projecWed XniW crediW meWhod and
diVcoXnWed aW a raWe eqXiYalenW Wo Whe cXrrenW raWe of reWXrn on a high qXaliW\ corporaWe bond of
eqXiYalenW Werm and cXrrenc\ Wo Whe liabiliWieV. The acWXarial YalXaWionV are obWained aW leaVW Wrienniall\
and are XpdaWed aW each Balance SheeW daWe. The amoXnWV charged Wo operaWing VXrplXV are Whe
cXrrenW VerYice coVWV and Whe coVWV of Vcheme inWrodXcWionV, benefiW changeV, VeWWlemenWV and
cXrWailmenWV. The\ are inclXded aV parW of VWaff coVWV aV incXrred. NeW inWereVW on Whe neW defined
benefiW liabiliW\/aVVeW iV alVo recogniVed in Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV and compriVeV Whe
inWereVW coVW on Whe defined benefiW obligaWion and inWereVW income on Whe Vcheme aVVeWV, calcXlaWed
b\ mXlWipl\ing Whe fair YalXe of Whe Vcheme aVVeWV aW Whe beginning of Whe period b\ Whe raWe XVed Wo
diVcoXnW Whe benefiW obligaWionV. The difference beWZeen Whe inWereVW income on Whe Vcheme aVVeWV
and Whe acWXal reWXrn on Whe Vcheme aVVeWV iV recogniVed in oWher recogniVed gainV and loVVeV.

AcWXarial gainV and loVVeV are recogniVed immediaWel\ in oWher recogniVed gainV and loVVeV.

  
1.14 FXnd accoXnWing

UnreVWricWed income fXndV repreVenW WhoVe reVoXrceV Zhich ma\ be XVed WoZardV meeWing an\ of Whe
chariWable objecWV of Whe Academ\ aW Whe diVcreWion of Whe TrXVWeeV.

ReVWricWed fi[ed aVVeW fXndV are reVoXrceV Zhich are Wo be applied Wo Vpecific capiWal pXrpoVeV
impoVed b\ Whe fXnderV Zhere Whe aVVeW acqXired or creaWed iV held for a Vpecific pXrpoVe.

ReVWricWed general fXndV compriVe all oWher reVWricWed fXndV receiYed ZiWh reVWricWionV impoVed b\ Whe
fXnder/donor and inclXde granWV from Whe DeparWmenW for EdXcaWion GroXp.

InYeVWmenW income, gainV and loVVeV are allocaWed Wo Whe appropriaWe fXnd.
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2. CriWical accoXnWing esWimaWes and areas of jXdgmenW

EVWimaWeV and jXdgmenWV are conWinXall\ eYalXaWed and are baVed on hiVWorical e[perience and oWher
facWorV, inclXding e[pecWaWionV of fXWXre eYenWV WhaW are belieYed Wo be reaVonable Xnder Whe
circXmVWanceV.

CriWical accoXnWing eVWimaWeV and aVVXmpWionV:

The Academ\ makeV eVWimaWeV and aVVXmpWionV concerning Whe fXWXre. The reVXlWing accoXnWing
eVWimaWeV and aVVXmpWionV Zill, b\ definiWion, Veldom eqXal Whe relaWed acWXal reVXlWV. The eVWimaWeV and
aVVXmpWionV WhaW haYe a VignificanW riVk of caXVing a maWerial adjXVWmenW Wo Whe carr\ing amoXnWV of
aVVeWV and liabiliWieV ZiWhin Whe ne[W financial \ear are diVcXVVed beloZ.

The annXal depreciaWion charge for Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV iV VenViWiYe Wo changeV in Whe eVWimaWed XVefXl
economic liYeV and reVidXal YalXeV of Whe aVVeWV. The XVefXl economic liYeV and reVidXal YalXeV are
reaVVeVVed annXall\. See noWe 12 for Whe carr\ing amoXnW of Whe Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV and noWe 1.6 for Whe
XVefXl economic life of each claVV of aVVeWV. 

The preVenW YalXe of Whe Local GoYernmenW PenVion Scheme defined benefiW liabiliW\ dependV on a
nXmber of facWorV WhaW are deWermined on an acWXarial baViV XVing a YarieW\ of aVVXmpWionV. The
aVVXmpWionV XVed in deWermining Whe neW coVW or income for penVionV inclXde Whe diVcoXnW raWe. An\
changeV in WheVe aVVXmpWionV, Zhich are diVcloVed in noWe 21, Zill impacW Whe carr\ing amoXnW of Whe
penVion liabiliW\. FXrWhermore a roll forZard approach Zhich projecWV reVXlWV from Whe laWeVW fXll acWXarial
YalXaWion performed aW 31 March 2016 haV been XVed b\ Whe acWXar\ in YalXing Whe penVionV liabiliW\ aW 31
AXgXVW 2020. An\ differenceV beWZeen Whe figXreV deriYed from Whe roll forZard approach and a fXll
acWXarial YalXaWion ZoXld impacW on Whe carr\ing amoXnW of Whe penVion liabiliW\.

CriWical areaV of jXdgmenW:

An\ change in Whe YalXaWion of Whe freehold land and bXildingV ariVing from jXdgmenWV concerning
depreciaWion and aVVeW liYeV ZoXld haYe a VignificanW impacW on Whe financial VWaWemenWV.

3. Income from donaWions and capiWal granWs

UnresWricWed
fXnds
2020

ResWricWed
fi[ed asseW

fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXndV
2019

        �         �         �         �
  
DonaWionV 171,089 630 171,719 242,584 
CapiWal granWV - 12,950 12,950 39,043 

ToWal 2020 171,089 13,580 184,669 281,627

ToWal 2019 240,704 40,923 281,627
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4. FXnding for Whe Academ\'s edXcaWional operaWions

UnresWricWed
fXnds
2020

ResWricWed
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXndV
2019

        �         �         �         �
DfE/ESFA granWs
General AnnXal GranW (GAG) - 838,249 838,249 731,847 
OWher ESFA/DfE granWV - 140,170 140,170 111,459 
PXpil premiXm - 14,108 14,108 13,520 
ProjecW deYelopmenW granW - 7,500 7,500 21,000 

- 1,000,027 1,000,027 877,826
OWher goYernmenW granWs  
SEN income - 27,567 27,567 10,990 

- 27,567 27,567 10,990
OWher fXnding  
OWher income 41,502 - 41,502 42,866 
CaWering income 72,619 - 72,619 46,603 
Trip income - 2,786 2,786 9,609 

114,121 2,786 116,907 99,078
E[cepWional goYernmenW fXnding  
CoronaYirXV Job ReWenWion Scheme granW 19,204 - 19,204 - 

ToWal 2020 133,325 1,030,380 1,163,705 987,894

ToWal 2019 42,866 945,028 987,894

The Academ\ TrXVW haV been eligible Wo claim addiWional fXnding in Whe \ear from goYernmenW VXpporW
VchemeV in reVponVe Wo Whe coronaYirXV oXWbreak. The fXnding receiYed for coronaYirXV e[cepWional
VXpporW coYerV �19,204 of reclaimed coVWV, VhoZn aboYe Xnder ³E[cepWional goYernmenW fXnding´. TheVe
coVWV are inclXded in noWeV 6 and 7 beloZ aV appropriaWe.

There are no XnfXlfilled condiWionV or oWher conWingencieV aWWached Wo Whe goYernmenW granWV aboYe.
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5. Income from oWher Wrading acWiYiWies

UnresWricWed
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXndV
2019

        �         �         �

Uniform ValeV 657 657 5,727 
School clXbV 61,955 61,955 74,783 
OWher income - - 896 

ToWal 2020 62,612 62,612 81,406

ToWal 2019 81,406 81,406

6. E[pendiWXre

SWaff CosWs
2020

Premises
2020

OWher
2020

ToWal
2020

ToWal
2019

        �         �         �         �         �

EdXcaWional operaWionV:  
DirecW coVWV 934,451 - 77,647 1,012,098 809,577 
SXpporW coVWV 192,378 198,050 274,539 664,967 657,928 

ToWal 2020 1,126,829 198,050 352,186 1,677,065 1,467,505

ToWal 2019 909,992 199,414 358,099 1,467,505

In 2020, of Whe WoWal e[pendiWXre on chariWable acWiYiWieV of �1,677,065 (2019 - �1,467,505), �446,914
(2019 - �319,658) ZaV from XnreVWricWed fXndV, �1,072,478 (2019 - �979,604) ZaV from reVWricWed fXndV
and �157,673 (2019 - �168,243) ZaV from reVWricWed fi[ed aVVeW fXndV.
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7. ChariWable e[pendiWXre

DirecW cosWs
2020

SXpporW
cosWs
2020

ToWal
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXndV
2019

        �         �         �         �

ChariWable acWiYiWieV 1,012,098 664,967 1,677,065 1,467,505
 

ToWal 2019 809,577 657,928 1,467,505

Anal\sis of sXpporW cosWs

EdXcaWional
operaWions

2020

ToWal
fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXndV
2019

        �         �         �

SWaff coVWV 170,458 170,458 159,848 
DepreciaWion 157,673 157,673 168,243 
Agenc\ and oWher VWaff coVWV 21,920 21,920 21,132 
SecXriW\ 47,078 47,078 51,144 
Technolog\ coVWV 26,262 26,262 24,160 
EdXcaWional conVXlWanc\ 2,179 2,179 5,754 
MainWenance of premiVeV and eqXipmenW 40,377 40,377 31,171 
RenW and raWeV 3,077 3,077 2,146 
Energ\ 13,524 13,524 14,329 
InVXrance 1,061 1,061 175 
CaWering 105,206 105,206 88,233 
OWher VXpporW coVWV 61,392 61,392 78,747 
GoYernance coVWV 14,760 14,760 12,846 

ToWal 2020 664,967 664,967 657,928

ToWal 2019 657,928 657,928
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8. NeW e[pendiWXre

NeW e[pendiWXre for Whe \ear inclXdeV:

2020 2019
� �

DepreciaWion of Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV 157,673 168,243
FeeV paid Wo aXdiWorV for:

- aXdiW 5,750 5,750
- oWher VerYiceV 3,375 3,275

9. SWaff

a. SWaff cosWs

SWaff coVWV dXring Whe \ear Zere aV folloZV:

2020 2019
� �

WageV and ValarieV 750,161 644,136
Social VecXriW\ coVWV 63,410 53,007
PenVion coVWV 205,223 138,013

1,018,794 835,156

Agenc\ VWaff coVWV 104,209 74,836
SWaff reVWrXcWXring coVWV 3,826 -

1,126,829 909,992

SWaff reVWrXcWXring coVWV compriVe:

2020 2019
� �

RedXndanc\ pa\menWV 3,826 -

3,826 -

b. Non-sWaWXWor\/non-conWracWXal sWaff seYerance pa\menWs

SWaff reVWrXcWXring coVWV iV made Xp of a Vingle VeYerance pa\menW Wo one indiYidXal of �3,826 (2019 -
�Nil).
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9. SWaff (conWinXed)

c. SWaff nXmbers

The aYerage nXmber of perVonV emplo\ed b\ Whe Academ\ dXring Whe \ear ZaV aV folloZV:

2020 2019
No. No.

TeacherV 15 13
AdminiVWraWion and VXpporW 16 16
ManagemenW 3 3

34 32

d. Higher paid sWaff

The nXmber of emplo\eeV ZhoVe emplo\ee benefiWV (e[clXding emplo\er penVion coVWV) e[ceeded
�60,000 ZaV:

2020 2019
No. No.

In Whe band �70,001 - �80,000 1 1

The aboYe emplo\ee (2019 - 1) parWicipaWed in Whe TeacherV' PenVion Scheme. DXring Whe \ear ended 31
AXgXVW 2020, penVion conWribXWionV for WhiV VWaff member amoXnWed Wo �17,479 (2019 - �11,839).

e. Ke\ managemenW personnel

The ke\ managemenW perVonnel of Whe Academ\ compriVe Whe TrXVWeeV and Whe Venior managemenW
Weam aV liVWed on page 1. The WoWal amoXnW of emplo\ee benefiWV (inclXding emplo\er penVion
conWribXWionV and emplo\er naWional inVXrance conWribXWionV) receiYed b\ ke\ managemenW perVonnel for
Wheir VerYiceV Wo Whe Academ\ ZaV �268,155 (2019 - �221,102).
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10. TrXsWees' remXneraWion and e[penses

One or more TrXVWeeV haV been paid remXneraWion or haV receiYed oWher benefiWV from an emplo\menW
ZiWh Whe Academ\. The principal and oWher VWaff TrXVWeeV onl\ receiYe remXneraWion in reVpecW of VerYiceV
Whe\ proYide XnderWaking Whe roleV of principal and VWaff memberV Xnder Wheir conWracWV of emplo\menW.
The YalXe of TrXVWeeV' remXneraWion and oWher benefiWV ZaV aV folloZV:

2020 2019
� �

Marc Shoffren, Principal and AccoXnWing
Officer

RemXneraWion 70,000 -
75,000 

70,000 -
75,000

PenVion conWribXWionV paid 15,000 -
20,000 

10,000 -
15,000

SamanWha RoVehill RemXneraWion 45,000 -
50,000 

45,000 -
50,000

PenVion conWribXWionV paid 10,000 -
15,000

5,000 -
10,000

DXring Whe \ear ended 31 AXgXVW 2020, WraYel e[penVeV WoWalling �391 (2019 - �583) Zere reimbXrVed Wo
3 TrXVWeeV (2019 - 1).

11. TrXsWees' and Officers' insXrance

The academ\ WrXVW haV opWed inWo Whe DeparWmenW for EdXcaWion¶V RiVk ProWecWion ArrangemenW (RPA), an
alWernaWiYe Wo inVXrance Zhere UK goYernmenW fXndV coYer loVVeV WhaW ariVe. ThiV Vcheme proWecWV
WrXVWeeV and officerV from claimV ariVing from negligenW acWV, errorV or omiVVionV occXrring ZhilVW on
academ\ bXVineVV, and proYideV coYer Xp Wo �10,000,000 (2019 - �10,000,000 ). IW iV noW poVVible Wo
qXanWif\ Whe TrXVWeeV and officerV indemniW\ elemenW from Whe oYerall coVW of Whe RPA Vcheme. The coVW of
WhiV inVXrance iV inclXded in Whe WoWal inVXrance coVW.
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12. Tangible fi[ed asseWs

Freehold
properW\

FXrniWXre
and fi[WXres

CompXWer
eqXipmenW ToWal

� � � �

CosW or YalXaWion
AW 1 SepWember 2019 7,004,796 684,956 166,150 7,855,902
AddiWionV - 3,703 9,107 12,810

AW 31 AXgXVW 2020 7,004,796 688,659 175,257 7,868,712

DepreciaWion
AW 1 SepWember 2019 274,492 125,620 129,555 529,667
Charge for Whe \ear 90,296 49,639 17,738 157,673

AW 31 AXgXVW 2020 364,788 175,259 147,293 687,340

NeW book YalXe

AW 31 AXgXVW 2020 6,640,008 513,400 27,964 7,181,372

AW 31 AXgXVW 2019 6,730,304 559,336 36,595 7,326,235

InclXded in freehold properW\ iV land aW coVW of �2,490,000 (2019 - �2,490,000). ThiV iV an eVWimaWion b\
Whe WrXVWeeV baVed on a 60:40 raWio of Whe original YalXaWion of �4,150,000. ThiV eVWimaWion folloZV
VignificanW reVearch and conVXlWaWionV XnderWaken b\ Whe Finance and OperaWionV CommiWWee. The
WrXVWeeV conVider WhaW Whe YalXaWion of freehold properW\ remainV appropriaWe aW 31 AXgXVW 2020.

13. DebWors

2020 2019
� �

VAT recoYerable 15,371 17,698
OWher debWorV 261 517
Prepa\menWV and accrXed income 58,566 58,731

74,198 76,946
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14. CrediWors: AmoXnWs falling dXe ZiWhin one \ear

2020 2019
� �

Trade crediWorV 24,940 33,103
OWher crediWorV 34,855 5,301
AccrXalV and deferred income 65,018 40,984

124,813 79,388

2020 2019
� �

Deferred income
Deferred income aW 1 SepWember 2019 31,990 31,404
ReVoXrceV deferred dXring Whe \ear 46,111 31,990
AmoXnWV releaVed from preYioXV periodV (31,990) (31,404)

46,111 31,990

AV aW Whe balance VheeW daWe Whe academ\ held fXndV in adYance for XniYerVal free Vchool mealV granW of
�22,305 (2019 - �22,146), parenW pa\ income from VWXdenWV of �Nil (2019 - �6,702), oWher income of
�3,572 (2019 - �3,142) and oWher granWV of �20,234 (2019 - �Nil).
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15. SWaWemenW of fXnds

Balance aW 1
SepWember

2019
�

Income
�

E[pendiWXre
�

Gains/
(Losses)

�

Balance aW
31 AXgXsW

2020
�

UnresWricWed fXnds

General fXndV 285,031 367,026 (446,914) - 205,143
 

ResWricWed general fXnds

GAG - 838,249 (838,208) - 41 
OWher DfE/ESFA granWV - 161,778 (161,089) - 689 
OWher reVWricWed fXndV - 30,353 (29,181) - 1,172 
PenVion reVerYe (229,000) - (44,000) 66,000 (207,000) 

(229,000) 1,030,380 (1,072,478) 66,000 (205,098)

ResWricWed fi[ed asseW fXnds

ESFA capiWal granWV 7,326,235 12,810 (157,673) - 7,181,372 
UnVpenW capiWal 11,105 770 - - 11,875 

7,337,340 13,580 (157,673) - 7,193,247

ToWal ResWricWed fXnds 7,108,340 1,043,960 (1,230,151) 66,000 6,988,149

ToWal fXnds 7,393,371 1,410,986 (1,677,065) 66,000 7,193,292
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15. SWaWemenW of fXnds (conWinXed)

The Vpecific pXrpoVeV for Zhich Whe fXndV are Wo be applied are aV folloZV:

The General AnnXal GranW (GAG) mXVW be XVed for Whe normal rXnning coVWV of Whe Academ\. Under Whe
fXnding agreemenW ZiWh Whe VecreWar\ of VWaWe, Whe Academ\ TrXVW ZaV noW VXbjecW Wo an\ reVWricWion on Whe
carr\ forZard of GAG aW 31 AXgXVW 2020.

The XnreVWricWed general fXndV repreVenW fXndV aYailable for Whe Academ\'V XnreVWricWed acWiYiWieV, aW Whe
diVcreWion of Whe TrXVWeeV.

The oWher reVWricWed fXndV relaWe Wo YarioXV Vchool and edXcaWional reVWricWed acWiYiWieV Zhich are noW
fXnded b\ Whe General AnnXal GranW.

The defined benefiW penVion Vcheme relaWeV Wo Whe penVion deficiW ariVing on Whe LGPS penVion Vcheme.
The fXnd iV in deficiW bXW giYen Whe naWXre of Whe liabiliW\ WhiV iV noW pa\able immediaWel\ and planV are in
place Wo meeW Whe deficiW, Vo WhaW Where iV no conVWrainW on reVerYeV going forZard.

The reVWricWed fi[ed aVVeW fXndV recogniVe Whe Wangible aVVeWV held b\ Whe academ\ WrXVW and iV eqXiYalenW
Wo Whe neW book YalXe of Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV and an\ XnVpenW capiWal granW fXndV. DepreciaWion of fi[ed
aVVeWV iV allocaWed Wo WheVe fXndV.
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15. SWaWemenW of fXnds (conWinXed)

ComparaWiYe informaWion in reVpecW of Whe preceding \ear iV aV folloZV:

Balance aW
1 SepWember

2018
�

Income
�

E[pendiWXre
�

GainV/
(LoVVeV)

�

Balance aW
31 AXgXVW

2019
�

General fXndV 239,713 364,976 (319,658) - 285,031
 

ResWricWed fXnds

GAG 5,451 731,847 (737,298) - - 
OWher DfE/ESFA granWV 3,125 145,979 (149,104) - - 
OWher reVWricWed fXndV - 67,202 (67,202) - - 
PenVion reVerYe (101,000) - (26,000) (102,000) (229,000) 

(92,424) 945,028 (979,604) (102,000) (229,000)

ResWricWed fi[ed asseW fXnds

ESFA capiWal granWV 7,464,660 29,818 (168,243) - 7,326,235 
UnVpenW capiWal - 11,105 - - 11,105 

7,464,660 40,923 (168,243) - 7,337,340

ToWal ResWricWed fXnds 7,372,236 985,951 (1,147,847) (102,000) 7,108,340

ToWal fXnds 7,611,949 1,350,927 (1,467,505) (102,000) 7,393,371
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16. Anal\sis of neW asseWs beWZeen fXnds

Anal\sis of neW asseWs beWZeen fXnds - cXrrenW period

UnresWricWed
fXnds
2020

ResWricWed
fXnds
2020

ResWricWed
fi[ed asseW

fXnds
2020

ToWal
fXnds
2020

        �         �         �         �

Tangible fi[ed aVVeWV - - 7,181,372 7,181,372
CXrrenW aVVeWV 205,143 126,715 11,875 343,733
CrediWorV dXe ZiWhin one \ear - (124,813) - (124,813)
PenVion deficiW - (207,000) - (207,000)

ToWal 205,143 (205,098) 7,193,247 7,193,292

Anal\sis of neW asseWs beWZeen fXnds - prior period

UnreVWricWed
fXndV
2019

ReVWricWed
fXndV
2019

ReVWricWed
fi[ed aVVeW

fXndV
2019

ToWal
fXndV
2019

        �         �         �         �

Tangible fi[ed aVVeWV - - 7,326,235 7,326,235
CXrrenW aVVeWV 285,031 79,388 11,105 375,524
CrediWorV dXe ZiWhin one \ear - (79,388) - (79,388)
PenVion deficiW - (229,000) - (229,000)

ToWal 285,031 (229,000) 7,337,340 7,393,371
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17. ReconciliaWion of neW e[pendiWXre Wo neW cash floZ from operaWing acWiYiWies

2020 2019
� �

NeW e[pendiWXre for Whe period (aV per SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV) (266,079) (116,578)

AdjXsWmenWs for:
DepreciaWion chargeV 157,673 168,243
DecreaVe/(increaVe) in VWockV - 4,210
DecreaVe/(increaVe) in debWorV 2,748 37,840
(DecreaVe)/increaVe in crediWorV 45,425 (64,664)
CapiWal granWV (12,950) (39,043)
PenVion Vcheme adjXVWmenW 44,000 26,000

NeW cash (Xsed in)/proYided b\ operaWing acWiYiWies (29,183) 16,008

18. Cash floZs from inYesWing acWiYiWies

2020 2019
� �

PXrchaVe of Wangible fi[ed aVVeWV (12,810) (29,818)
CapiWal granWV 12,950 39,043

NeW cash proYided b\ inYesWing acWiYiWies 140 9,225

19. Anal\sis of cash and cash eqXiYalenWs

2020 2019
� �

CaVh aW bank and in hand 269,535 298,578

ToWal cash and cash eqXiYalenWs 269,535 298,578
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20. Anal\sis of changes in neW debW

AW 1
SepWember

2019 Cash floZs
AW 31

AXgXsW 2020
� � �

CaVh aW bank and in hand 298,578 (29,043) 269,535

298,578 (29,043) 269,535

21. Pension commiWmenWs

The Academ\'V emplo\eeV belong Wo WZo principal penVion VchemeV: Whe TeacherV' PenVion Scheme
England and WaleV (TPS) for academic and relaWed VWaff; and Whe Local GoYernmenW PenVion Scheme
(LGPS) for non-Weaching VWaff, Zhich iV managed b\ London BoroXgh of BarneW. BoWh are mXlWi-emplo\er
defined benefiW VchemeV.

The laWeVW acWXarial YalXaWion of Whe TPS relaWed Wo Whe period ended 31 March 2016 and of Whe LGPS 31
March 2016.

ConWribXWionV amoXnWing Wo �18,300 Zere pa\able Wo Whe VchemeV aW 31 AXgXVW 2020 (2019 - �Nil) and are
inclXded ZiWhin crediWorV.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The TeacherV' PenVion Scheme (TPS) iV a VWaWXWor\, conWribXWor\, defined benefiW Vcheme, goYerned b\
Whe TeacherV' PenVion Scheme RegXlaWionV 2014. MemberVhip iV aXWomaWic for fXll-Wime WeacherV in
academieV. All WeacherV haYe Whe opWion Wo opW-oXW of Whe TPS folloZing enrolmenW.

The TPS iV an XnfXnded Vcheme Wo Zhich boWh Whe member and emplo\er makeV conWribXWionV, aV a
percenWage of Valar\ - WheVe conWribXWionV are crediWed Wo Whe E[cheqXer. ReWiremenW and oWher penVion
benefiWV are paid b\ pXblic fXndV proYided b\ ParliamenW.
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21. Pension commiWmenWs (conWinXed)

ValXaWion of Whe Teachers' Pension Scheme

The GoYernmenW AcWXar\, XVing normal acWXarial principleV, condXcWV a formal acWXarial reYieZ of Whe TPS
in accordance ZiWh Whe PXblic SerYice PenVionV (ValXaWionV and Emplo\er CoVW Cap) DirecWionV 2014
pXbliVhed b\ HM TreaVXr\ eYer\ 4 \earV. The aim of Whe reYieZ iV Wo Vpecif\ Whe leYel of fXWXre
conWribXWionV. AcWXarial Vcheme YalXaWionV are dependenW on aVVXmpWionV aboXW Whe YalXe of fXWXre coVWV,
deVign of benefiWV and man\ oWher facWorV. The laWeVW acWXarial YalXaWion of Whe TPS ZaV carried oXW aV aW
31 March 2016. The YalXaWion reporW ZaV pXbliVhed b\ Whe DeparWmenW for EdXcaWion on 5 March 2019.
The ke\ elemenWV of Whe YalXaWion and VXbVeqXenW conVXlWaWion are:

x emplo\er conWribXWion raWeV VeW aW 23.68% of penVionable pa\ (inclXding a 0.08% adminiVWraWion
leY\)

x WoWal Vcheme liabiliWieV (penVionV cXrrenWl\ in pa\menW and Whe eVWimaWed coVW of fXWXre benefiWV) for
VerYice Wo Whe effecWiYe daWe of �218,100 million and noWional aVVeWV (eVWimaWed fXWXre conWribXWionV
WogeWher ZiWh Whe noWional inYeVWmenWV held aW Whe YalXaWion daWe) of �196,100 million, giYing a
noWional paVW VerYice deficiW of �22,000 million

x Whe SCAPE raWe, VeW b\ HMT, iV XVed Wo deWermine Whe noWional inYeVWmenW reWXrn. The cXrrenW
SCAPE raWe iV 2.4% aboYe Whe raWe of CPI, aVVXmed real raWe of reWXrn iV 2.4% in e[ceVV of priceV
and 2% in e[ceVV of earningV. The raWe of real earningV groZWh iV aVVXmed Wo be 2.2%. The
aVVXmed nominal raWe of reWXrn inclXding earningV groZWh iV 4.45%.

The ne[W YalXaWion reVXlW iV dXe Wo be implemenWed from 1 April 2023.

The emplo\er'V penVion coVWV paid Wo TPS in Whe \ear amoXnWed Wo �123,000 (2019 - �71,000).

A cop\ of Whe YalXaWion reporW and VXpporWing docXmenWaWion iV on Whe TeacherV' PenVionV ZebViWe
(hWWpV://ZZZ.WeacherVpenVionV.co.Xk/neZV/emplo\erV/2019/04/WeacherV-penVionV-YalXaWion-reporW.aVp[).

Under Whe definiWionV VeW oXW in FRS 102, Whe TPS iV an XnfXnded mXlWi-emplo\er penVion Vcheme. The
Academ\ haV accoXnWed for iWV conWribXWionV Wo Whe Vcheme aV if iW Zere a defined conWribXWion Vcheme.
The Academ\ haV VeW oXW aboYe Whe informaWion aYailable on Whe Vcheme.

Local GoYernmenW Pension Scheme

The LGPS iV a fXnded defined benefiW penVion Vcheme, ZiWh Whe aVVeWV held in VeparaWe WrXVWee-
adminiVWered fXndV. The WoWal conWribXWion made for Whe \ear ended 31 AXgXVW 2020 ZaV �47,000 (2019 -
�51,000), of Zhich emplo\er'V conWribXWionV WoWalled �38,000 (2019 - �41,000) and emplo\eeV'
conWribXWionV WoWalled � 9,000 (2019 - �10,000). The agreed conWribXWion raWeV for fXWXre \earV are 24.0 per
cenW for emplo\erV and 5.5 - 12.5 per cenW for emplo\eeV.

AV deVcribed in noWe 15 Whe LGPS obligaWion relaWeV Wo Whe emplo\eeV of Whe Academ\, Zho Zere Whe
emplo\eeV WranVferred aV parW of Whe conYerVion from Whe mainWained Vchool and neZ emplo\eeV Zho
Zere eligible Wo, and did, join Whe Scheme in Whe \ear. The obligaWion in reVpecW of emplo\eeV Zho
WranVferred on conYerVion repreVenWV Wheir cXmXlaWiYe VerYice aW boWh Whe predeceVVor Vchool and Whe
Academ\ aW Whe balance VheeW daWe.

ParliamenW haV agreed, aW Whe reqXeVW of Whe SecreWar\ of SWaWe for EdXcaWion, Wo a gXaranWee WhaW, in Whe
eYenW of academ\ cloVXre, oXWVWanding Local GoYernmenW PenVion Scheme liabiliWieV ZoXld be meW b\ Whe
DeparWmenW for EdXcaWion. The gXaranWee came inWo force on 18 JXl\ 2013.
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21. Pension commiWmenWs (conWinXed)

Principal acWXarial assXmpWions

2020 2019
% %

RaWe of increaVe in ValarieV 2.90 2.60
RaWe of increaVe for penVionV in pa\menW/inflaWion 2.20 2.30
DiVcoXnW raWe for Vcheme liabiliWieV 1.70 1.90

The cXrrenW morWaliW\ aVVXmpWionV inclXde VXfficienW alloZance for fXWXre improYemenWV in morWaliW\ raWeV.
The aVVXmed life e[pecWaWionV on reWiremenW age 65 are:

2020 2019
Years YearV

RHWLULQJ WRGa\
MaleV 21.7 21.0
FemaleV 24.0 23.3
RHWLULQJ LQ 20 \HaUV
MaleV 22.9 22.3
FemaleV 25.7 25.1

SensiWiYiW\ anal\sis

2020 2019
�000 �000

Salar\ IncreaVe RaWe +0.5% 2 2
DiVcoXnW RaWe -0.5% 91 93
PenVion IncreaVe RaWe +0.5% 88 89

The Academ\'V Vhare of Whe aVVeWV in Whe Vcheme ZaV:

2020 2019
� �

EqXiWieV 183,000 155,000
BondV 98,000 89,000
CaVh 30,000 25,000
ProperW\ 16,000 8,000

ToWal markeW YalXe of asseWs 327,000 277,000

The acWXal reWXrn on Vcheme aVVeWV from 1 OcWober 2019 Wo 30 JXne 2020 ZaV -0.1% (2019 - 3.2%).

Page 51



 
ALMA PRIMARY
(A Compan\ LimiWed b\ GXaranWee)

 

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2020

21. Pension commiWmenWs (conWinXed)

The amoXnWV recogniVed in Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWieV are aV folloZV:

2020 2019
� �

CXrrenW VerYice coVW (78,000) (64,000)
InWereVW income 6,000 7,000
InWereVW coVW (10,000) (10,000)

ToWal amoXnW recognised in Whe SWaWemenW of Financial AcWiYiWies (82,000) (67,000)

ChangeV in Whe preVenW YalXe of Whe defined benefiW obligaWionV Zere aV folloZV:

2020 2019
� �

AW 1 SepWember 506,000 312,000
CXrrenW and paVW VerYice coVW 78,000 64,000
InWereVW coVW 10,000 10,000
Emplo\ee conWribXWionV 9,000 10,000
AcWXarial (gainV)/loVVeV (68,000) 110,000
BenefiWV paid (1,000) -

AW 31 AXgXsW 534,000 506,000

ChangeV in Whe fair YalXe of Whe Academ\'V Vhare of Vcheme aVVeWV Zere aV folloZV:

2020 2019
� �

AW 1 SepWember 277,000 211,000
InWereVW income 6,000 7,000
AcWXarial (loVVeV)/gainV (2,000) 8,000
Emplo\er conWribXWionV 38,000 41,000
Emplo\ee conWribXWionV 9,000 10,000
BenefiWV paid (1,000) -

AW 31 AXgXsW 327,000 277,000
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22. Members' liabiliW\

Each member of Whe chariWable compan\ XnderWakeV Wo conWribXWe Wo Whe aVVeWV of Whe compan\ in Whe
eYenW of iW being ZoXnd Xp Zhile he/Vhe iV a member, or ZiWhin one \ear afWer he/Vhe ceaVeV Wo be a
member, VXch amoXnW aV ma\ be reqXired, noW e[ceeding �10 for Whe debWV and liabiliWieV conWracWed
before he/Vhe ceaVeV Wo be a member.

23. RelaWed parW\ WransacWions

OZing Wo Whe naWXre of Whe Academ\ and Whe compoViWion of Whe board of WrXVWeeV being draZn from local
pXblic and priYaWe VecWor organiVaWionV, WranVacWionV ma\ Wake place ZiWh organiVaWionV in Zhich Whe
WrXVWeeV haYe an inWereVW. All WranVacWionV inYolYing VXch organiVaWionV are condXcWed in accordance ZiWh
Whe reqXiremenWV of Whe AcademieV Financial Handbook, inclXding noWif\ing Whe ESFA of all WranVacWionV
made on or afWer 1 April 2019 and obWaining Wheir approYal Zhere reqXired, and ZiWh Whe Academ\'V
financial regXlaWionV and normal procXremenW procedXreV relaWing Wo connecWed and relaWed parW\
WranVacWionV.

No fXrWher relaWed parW\ WranVacWionV Wook place in Whe \ear of accoXnW oWher Whan WhoVe diVcloVed in noWe
10.
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